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About Lotterywest

ABOUT LOTTERYWEST

Our vision
Building a better Western Australia together.

Our purpose
To enhance the quality of life and wellbeing for all Western Australians through 
the funding and support we provide to our beneficiaries and by running our 
lottery business with excellence and integrity. 

Our values
Lotterywest is an organisation committed to serving the community of Western 
Australia with excellence and integrity. In enacting these values, we recognise 
the diversity of our stakeholders and strive for an approach which balances their 
different needs and expectations. 

Four core values 
underpin all that we do:
Rewarding
We seek to ensure that the experience of all those with whom 
we come into contact – players, grant seekers, business 
partners and the community as a whole – will be a valued and 
rewarding one and that all will be treated with courtesy and 
respect.

Inspiring
We motivate, encourage and inspire ourselves and others to 
achieve greater things for the benefit of the community  
of Western Australia.

Trusted
We are honest, reliable and trustworthy. We conduct 
ourselves professionally with the highest standards of integrity 
and excellence in all our business operations and in our 
relationships with all our stakeholders.

Engaging
We actively seek relationships with all our stakeholders based 
on principles of mutual respect and strive to enhance the 
achievement of their goals and ours.
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$827 
M I L L I O N

$440 
M I L L I O N

$265
M I L L I O N

2016/17  
highlights

2016/17 sales and return to 
the community

Lottery 
sales

Product sales

Prizes to Western 
Australians

Contribution back to 
the community

Our games
Total sales of $827 million

Our winners
Total prizes to WA winners of $440 million
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77

56

$15.1 
M I L L I O N

$15.1  
M I L L I O N

92%

8%
56.5%

43.5%

to WA health services and hospitals

approved in Lotterywest direct grants

to Sport and Recreation

Division 1 winners 
for FY 2016/17

Top Prize winners 
for FY 2016/17

to Culture and the Arts

of total 
sales

of total 
sales

512 retail 
outlets =

Online 
sales = Play Online

Lotterywest 
Mobile App

Our beneficiaries
Allocated more than $265 million to the  
WA community

Our distribution channels
•  $7.8 million to The University of Western Australia 

(UWA) for the Perth International Arts Festival (PIAF).

•  $7.8 million to Screenwest for investment in the  
WA screen industry.

•  $98.6 million to other not-for-profit organisations 
and local government authorities. 

Lotterywest approved 887 grants to 764 different 
not-for-profit organisations and local government 
authorities.
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Saturday Lotto 

$317.8m

Monday and 
Wednesday Lotto 

$59.7m
Set for Life 

$52.2m

Powerball 

$155.2m

Other games 

$16.3m

Scratch’n’Win 

$96.1m

OZ Lotto 

$130.1m



2016/17  
winners

Saturday Lotto

OZ Lotto

Scratch’n’Win

Powerball Set for Life

Monday and 
Wednesday Lotto 

Soccer Pools

Super 66
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$65.7 
M I L L I O N

$3.4 
MILLION

$42.1 
M I L L I O N

$ 1 2 
MILLION

$ 2 
MILLION

$20,000 
PER MONTH

 $459,693

$535,283
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5612
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5

shared a combined total of

shared in

shared a combined total of

collected will collect

across 20 years

claimed

shared in

shared in

Division 1 
winners

Division 1 
winners 
in WA

Top Prize 
winners

Division 1 
winnersDivision 1 

winners

Division 1 
winner

First Prize 
winner

Division 1 
winners

Division 1 
winners

Throughout the year,  
77 Western Australians 
shared in Division 1 and  
1st prizes worth $128 million 
as well as Scratch’n’Win  
Top Prizes worth $3.4 million.

In total, WA won over  
$440 million across all 
Lotterywest products. 



Heather Zampatti 
Chair

Executive 
summary

As a result, Lotterywest sales were down 7% on the previous 
financial year, consistent with national lottery industry trends. 
The net impact on our bottom line was limited to $3.55 million 
after the Board took the prudent measure to lower expenditure 
to a more sustainable level while the organisation identified a 
number of product campaigns, promotional initiatives and new 
opportunities to pursue avenues of growth. 

To improve sales we launched a new brand initiative, A Lot 
Happens When You Play, highlighting the link between playing 
our games and giving back to the community and launched 
the Lotterywest Dream Machine as well as our Cashcade 
Celebrations and Super Saturday. 

Lotterywest retailers remained our main distribution channel 
throughout the year accounting for 92% of total sales and we 
continued to invest in developing a new look for them by way 
of the Retail Transformation Program (RTP) which has seen us 
introduce a digital point of sale for players as well as a more 
modern shop fit for retailers. 

The rollout of RTP is vital in ensuring Lotterywest stores remain 
relevant and contemporary. Most recently we have been 
working with our retail network and commenced a review of 
the process to explore opportunities to support our retailers 
throughout the transition. 

It has been pleasing to see Play Online sales up 7.3% on last 
year. The Lotterywest App also continues to be popular among 
our online market, with 43.5% of online sales purchased via  
this platform. 

Our sales throughout the year supported our long and  
proud grants history with $265 million being distributed 
throughout the State in 2016/17. While statutory allocations for 
health, sports and the arts totalled $151.1 million, $114.2 million 
was distributed among 764 not-for-profit organisations and 
local government authorities.

Our grants team continued its well-established practise of 
visiting remote, regional and metropolitan communities across 
WA to ensure they have an up-to-date understanding of their 
needs and also enjoyed meeting with various stakeholders to 
discuss the future of Lotterywest grant making and how we can 
deliver maximum benefit to the community. 

It was great to see so many Western Australians experience  
the thrill of a lottery win and this year the State recorded  
77 Division 1 wins. 

In saying that, we do operate a game of chance where the 
number of jackpot occurrences directly influences our sales.  
This year, a substantially smaller number of jackpots across  
OZ Lotto and Powerball games meant we were unable to 
replicate the record sales we achieved last year. 

The State’s subdued economic conditions and an increasingly 
competitive business environment, including the rise of online 
sports betting and synthetic lottery providers, also made for a 
challenging year.

Another highlight for 2016/17 was the relocation of our 
head office to Subiaco. The new office provides both an 
outstanding customer experience and quality working 
environment for Lotterywest employees.

In reflecting on the year, I wish to extend my appreciation 
to both the past and present Premiers and thank them for 
their support and leadership. 

I would also like to acknowledge our previous CEO, 
Paul Andrew, for his contribution to the organisation,  
and welcome new CEO, Susan Hunt PSM, to the 
Lotterywest team. 

I sincerely thank my fellow Board members and the 
Lotterywest Corporate Executive and staff for their ongoing 
commitment to the organisation. Their dedication to 
running our business with excellence and integrity holds 
us in great stead as we work to build a better WA together. 

Top Prize winners
Division 1 winners

$265 
MILL ION

$440 
M I L L I O N

Contribution back to the 
WA community

given to WA players in 
prize money

Thank you to our local players who helped 
us achieve sales of $827 million this year, 
resulting in $265 million being returned 
to the WA community through our grants 
program and $440 million shared among 
our winners. 
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Where does the 
money come from?

Where does the  
money go?
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Other  

0.5%

Sale of lottery 
products 

98%

Interest

1%
Retailer fees 

0.5%

Prizes 

52%

Asset purchase 

2%

Grant payments 

31%

Retailer 
commissions 

7%
Employee 

benefits 

3%
Marketing and 

distribution

2%

Supplies and services

3%
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Board of Commissioners

Heather Zampatti (Chair)
Miriam Borthwick

Stephen Carre
Andrea Hall

Maria Harries
Garry Trinder

Chief Executive Officer
Paul Andrew

Minister Responsible
Hon. Mark McGowan MLA 

Premier

Executive Support

Corporate 
Services

General Manager
Jeremy Hubble

Audit and Risk Management

Contract Management

Facilities Management

Financial Management

Governance and Legal

Human Resources and 
Organisational Development

Information Communications, 
Security and Technology

Project Management

Strategic  
Development

General Manager
Ioannis Gerothanasis

Bloc and Industry Relations

Business Intelligence 
and Analytics

Product and Channel 
Development

Strategic Planning

Innovation

Marketing and Brand 
Development

General Manager
Honor Clarke

Brand Management

Digital Channel  
Development

Direct Marketing

Loyalty and Engagement

Mass Marketing

Public Relations

Grants and Community 
Development

General Manager
Jacquie Thomson

Community Engagement 
and Development

Grant Development

Grant Management

Grants Strategy  
and Governance

Industry and Stakeholder 
Support and Engagement

Lottery  
Operations

General Manager
Maree Brown

Business Development 
and Sales

Customer Services

Gaming Product 
Developments

Gaming System 
Management

Retail Network Planning, 
Management and Support

Organisational 
structure
(as at 30 June 2017)



Corporate 
structure
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Ms Heather Zampatti (Chair)
Ms Heather Zampatti is the Chair of the Lotterywest Board, 
appointed in September 2015.

She is currently Head of Wealth Management at Bell Potter 
Securities and also sits on the Boards of Osteoporosis Australia, 
Chief Executive Women (CEW) and the University Club of Western 
Australia. Heather is a member of the Australian Government 
Financial Sector Advisory Council, ASIC Financial Services 
Consultative Committee and the WA Regional Council of 
FINSIA. Formerly the Chair of the Princess Margaret Foundation, 
Heather brings a strong background in community support to 
the Lotterywest Board.

Heather has previously served as a Board member of the 
Australian Government Takeovers Panel, West Australian Ballet, 
UWA Strategic Resources Committee, pSivida, The Hunger 
Project (Australia) and the Australian Institute of Management.

She is a graduate of UWA with a Bachelor of Science (BSc) 
and Diploma of Education (Dip Ed). She is a Certified Financial 
Planner (CFP).

Board of Management

Ms Miriam Borthwick
Ms Miriam Borthwick joined the Board in April 2015. She is an 
experienced journalist, strategic communications specialist 
and media relations advisor. Miriam has more than 25 years’ 
experience working in the media, government and corporate 
sectors. She also provides media and presentation skills training to 
a diverse range of clients. 

Miriam is currently Senior Media Advisor at the Harry Perkins 
Institute of Medical Research and was an award winning reporter 
for The 7.30 Report and a political panellist on ABC radio. 

Miriam is currently on the Board of Rocky Bay and is a foundation 
member of Women in Media. She is also a member of the 
Australian Institute of Company Directors. 

Mr Stephen Carre
Mr Stephen Carre joined the Lotterywest Board in December  
2013 bringing with him a wealth of experience as a small 
business owner. 

Stephen also has interests in food and distribution as the Managing 
Director of Farm to Table which supports farmers to distribute their 
products to independent retailers and supermarkets. He has a 
strong background in business improvement, developed during his 
30 year career in banking and small business and is a Fellow of the 
Australian Institute of Company Directors. 

Stephen holds a Bachelor of Business, Master of Business 
Administration (MBA) and is a Certified Public Accountant. 

Ms Andrea Hall
Ms Andrea Hall joined the Lotterywest Board in March 2012. She 
is a Board Member of the Insurance Commission of Western 
Australia, Fremantle Football Club, C Wise, Tap Oil Ltd and Pioneer 
Credit Ltd as well as a Senate member of Murdoch University. 

Andrea was previously the Chair of Community First International 
Ltd which later merged to become Community Care Force.  She is 
also a former Chair and member of the WA Council for the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants in Australia and New Zealand.

Andrea has over 25 years’ experience in risk management, 
financial management, internal audit, external audit and board, 
corporate and operational governance. 

Dr Maria Harries
Dr Maria Harries joined the Board in June 2011 and currently runs 
her own evaluation and management consulting business. 

Maria currently holds the position of Senior Honorary Fellow at UWA 
where she worked as an academic for over 20 years. She is also an 
Adjunct Professor at Curtin University.

With a career in human services that spans over 40 years, 
Maria holds original degrees in psychology and politics from the 
University of Tasmania and social work from UWA. She also has a 
Masters in Social Administration from Flinders University and a PhD 
from Murdoch University. 

During her career, Maria has developed a reputation as a leader 
in a diversity of areas including mental health, child and family 
welfare, ethics, research, management and governance. She sits 
on a variety of boards and has chaired a number of organisations 
including MercyCare WA. 

Maria was awarded an Order of Australia (AM) in 2004.

Mr Garry Trinder
Mr Garry Trinder joined the Board in December 2011. Before retiring, 
Garry was Chief Information Officer at Edith Cowan University. He 
brings with him more than 45 years experience in the information 
technology industry in both private and Government sectors.

In 2007, Garry was awarded the prestigious WA Information 
Technology and Telecommunications Award - recognising his 
outstanding contribution to the State’s ICT industry. He is also a 
Fellow, Honorary Life Member and Past National President of the 
Australian Computer Society (ACS). 

Before he joined Edith Cowan University, Garry held a range of 
senior consultancy and management roles for groups including 
Mercy Care, BHP Iron Ore and Arthur Young. 

Garry also served a four-year term as an Elected Member on the 
City of Subiaco Council, including two years as Deputy Mayor.

FROM LEFT: Mr Garry Trinder, Ms Andrea Hall, Ms Miriam Borthwick, Ms Heather Zampatti (Chair), Mr Stephen Carre, Dr Maria Harries.
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Corporate 
structure

Mr Paul Andrew
Chief Executive Officer (resigned 3 July 2017)
As Chief Executive Officer, Mr Paul Andrew is responsible for 
the day to day operation and growth and development of 
Lotterywest. Since undertaking the role of CEO, Paul has lead the 
organisation through significant organisational restructure and 
achieved several strategic milestones.  

Paul has over 30 years’ experience and prior to joining the 
Lotterywest team he was the CEO of Surf Life Saving Western 
Australia (SLSWA) for almost 10 years. 

Paul currently holds a Bachelor of Business specialising in Human 

Resource Management and Industrial Relations. 

Ms Maree Brown
General Manager, Lottery Operations
Ms Maree Brown is responsible for leading Lottery Operations, 
which includes gaming, channel and product development. She 
also heads management and development of the retail network, 
and services and support to our broad customer-base including 
retailers, players and grant customers.

Maree took up her current role in 2006, having managed our 
Retail Distribution and Operations section since 2003. She holds  
a Bachelor of Arts from UWA. 

Leadership Team

Ms Honor Clarke
General Manager, Marketing and Brand Development
Ms Honor Clarke leads the Marketing and Brand Development 
team. She brings her passion for building high performing teams 
and leading brands through digital transformation. She has been 
doing this for over 20 years across the UK and Asia.

With her brand strategist hat on, she understands what makes 
brands engaging and leads the team in formulating and 
executing marketing and digital strategies to deliver business 
objectives. She inspires and motivates the team to think about 
how today’s consumers engage with Lotterywest. She is also 
responsible for creating an omni-channel experience based 
on a physical and digital presence. This has created inspiring 
opportunities for people to play, win and give. 

Honor has a Master of Business Administration, Business and 
Finance (Marketing) from Macquarie University and has been 
CPM accredited since 2014. Her community service focus is 
coaching and redefining what is possible for people and what 
matters most to them.

Mr Jeremy Hubble
General Manager, Corporate Services and Chief 
Financial Officer
Mr Jeremy Hubble is responsible for the financial, human 
resources, information, physical and technology related 
support functions critical to Lotterywest’s operations. He is also 
responsible for overarching financial management, governance, 
statutory compliance and technology partner for the business 
critical gaming system.

Jeremy is a qualified Chartered Accountant with substantial 
experience in commerce and government. He holds a Bachelor 
of Business degree and a Master of Business Administration. He 
also has extensive corporate governance experience and is a 
member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Before he joined Lotterywest in March 2016, Jeremy was a senior 
executive in both State and local Government for 20 years. Jeremy 

has held senior positions with a major international chartered 
accounting firm and public commercial entities.

Mr Ioannis Gerothanasis
General Manager, Strategic Development
Mr Ioannis Gerothanasis leads Lotterywest’s Strategic 
Development team and is responsible for research and 
development, analysis and insights and planning and  
innovation functions.  

He has 18 years of international management experience 
working for large multinational organisations on projects in the 
Asia Pacific, North and South America, Europe and the Middle 
East – initially in the travel and tourism industry and later in the 
lottery industry. Ioannis has substantial experience in project and 
program management, information technology and public and 
private sector tendering.

He holds a Bachelor of Business (Management and 
Organisational Behaviour) and a Bachelor of Arts (Philosophy).

Ms Jacquie Thomson
General Manager, Grants and Community Development
Ms Jacquie Thomson is responsible for ensuring the effective 
management of Lotterywest’s direct grants program as well as 
providing advice and support to the WA not-for-profit sector. 

Jacquie has worked in community development for more than 
25 years. Before joining Lotterywest in 1994, Jacquie worked in 
the not-for-profit sector across the areas of domestic violence, 
youth accommodation and mental health and as a community 
development practitioner. 

After undertaking a variety of grant management, policy 
development and strategic planning roles at Lotterywest, Jacquie 
undertook her current role in 2003.

She holds a Bachelor of Arts (Social Sciences) from Curtin 
University and a Graduate Certificate in Management from 
Deakin University.

FROM LEFT: Ms Jacquie Thomson; Ms Maree Brown, Mr Jeremy Hubble, Ms Honor Clarke, Mr Ioannis Gerothanasis (Absent: Mr Paul Andrew).
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Alignment to Government goals
The State Government’s broad, high level goals are supported at an agency level by specific objectives. The following diagram shows 
the alignment between the Government goals and Lotterywest’s objectives, services and performance measures.

Greater focus on 
achieving results in 
key service delivery 
areas for the benefit 

of all Western 
Australians

Support the community 
of WA through our 

grants program

Provision of grants and other distributions 
 to the community of WA

Total allocations to beneficiaries 
 per capita

Total allocations to beneficiaries  
as a % of sales

Sales per adult

Grant operations expenses as a % of 
direct grants

Lottery expenses as a % of sales

Sale of lottery products to the public of WA

Greater focus on service 
delivery, infrastructure 

investment and 
economic development 
to improve the overall 

quality of life in remote 
and regional areas

Ensure that our 
products and services 
are accessible to all 
people living in our 

State

Ensuring that 
economic activity is 

managed in a socially 
and environmentally 
responsible manner 

for the long-term 
benefit of the State

Provide and efficiently 
administer a 

responsible lottery 
service in WA

Responsibly managing the 
State’s finances through 
the efficient and effective 

delivery of services, 
encouraging economic 
activity and reducing 

regulatory burden on the 
private sector

Maintain a strong 
State-wide retail 

network and develop 
relationships and 

partnerships with WA 
suppliers

Efficiency Indicators

Efficiency Indicators

Effectiveness Indicators Effectiveness Indicators

Government 
Goal

Lotterywest 
Objective

Lotterywest 
Service

Performance 
Measures

Strategic framework
Our strategic framework describes the key elements of our business 
model and is the basis of the plan to achieve our objectives.

Building a better  
WA together

Products  
and services Distribution

Capacity

Communications 
and branding 

Vision

A revision of the strategic framework is underway and is 
expected to be completed by late 2017.

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Strategic 
framework 

review

Strategic 
framework  

2018-23 
commences

Strategic 
framework  

2018-23 
agreed

Strategic framework 2018-23

Strategic framework 2014-18

Develop strategic 
framework 2018-23
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Products  
and services

 

Distribution

Player channels
Lotterywest products can be bought via two 
channels – instore and online. 

As of 30 June 2017, there are 507 full service  
lottery stores in the network with the last year 
in particular seeing some significant changes, 
including: 

• We reclassified our community service outlet  
stores to full services stores in October 2016 to 
move into one consistent retail model.

• We also commenced the withdrawal of the 
Scratch’n’Win network as part of our broader 
retail distribution strategy. The withdrawal of the 
Scratch’n’Win network will be finalised during 2018.

• We established 16 new stores.

We also have been developing self-service kiosks 
at selected stores across our network as part of 
our planned upgrade to our gaming system and 
hardware.

Retailers’ Consultative Panel
The Retailers’ Consultative Panel (RCP) is a valuable body 
representing the Lotterywest retail network in consultations on 
key business initiatives and issues. A new panel was appointed 
this year with eight representatives from across the Lotterywest 
retail network.

Over the last year we hosted nine panel meetings to work 
through the key matters of the current challenging market we’re 
all operating in. 

In addition to the RCP, we’re also looking at ways for a broader 
representation of retailers to be involved in specific business 
development initiatives and to engage and share their thoughts.

Business development
We launched a new business development initiative ‘Reach your 
Business Potential’. This saw retailers supported through targeted 
business meetings with retailers developing business plans with 
their Business Development Officer to meet sales objectives.

Over the past 12 months, we have conducted over 800 business 
meetings with retailers, resulting in 228 retailers achieving 
growth in their network market share.

We will be introducing improvements to the Business 
Development Program in the coming year, with a targeted 
approach and focus on sales potential and retailer engagement.
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Scratch‘n’Win 
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Player channels

Incentives and rewards
We launched our annual rewards program, ‘Rewards 4 Growth’ 
in October 2016 to recognise and reward retailers for increasing 
their sales during the year. As a result we paid $176,500 in 
rewards to retailers in the 2016/17 financial year.

We also conducted retailer incentives and rewards programs 
over shorter periods during the year, supporting targeted 
marketing campaigns. This resulted in participating retailers 
sharing an additional $221,500 in rewards.

This brings the total value of incentives and rewards paid to 
Lotterywest retailers in the last financial year to $398,000, an 
increase of over 190% on the prior year.

Retailer training
We deliver two core operational training courses and have 
introduced a series of business development workshops. These 
focus on the interests and business needs retailers have told us 
about, such as in-store marketing and store layout.

Training Course Courses 
conducted

Total 
participants

Manage a Lottery Outlet 12 120

Work in a Lottery Outlet 26 265

Workshops 6 116

Total attendees 44 501
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Product 
sales results

 

Red Lotto – Saturday, Monday and Wednesday
Saturday Lotto sales represented 38.4% of total sales. Combined 
Red Lotto sales accounted for 45.6% of sales for financial year 
2016/17.

The strong sales for the Red Lotto games were driven by tactical 
sales initiatives such as the Cashcades promotion for Monday 
and Wednesday Lotto and Super Saturday promotion for 
Saturday Lotto. Retailer incentive programs like ‘Boost your Base 
Weeks’ and ‘Seeing Double’ also helped stimulate sales.

Strong performance during these tactical sales initiatives saw 
an increase of 0.8% in our Australian Lottery Bloc share for the 
Red Lotto games.

Jackpot games – OZ Lotto and Powerball
The jackpot games did not deliver the high level jackpots 
forecast this financial year which impacted overall sales. OZ 
Lotto sales were down 9.9% against budget and 16.8% against 
last year’s result. Powerball sales were down 12.5% against 
budget and 17.5% against last year’s result.

The total combined Division 1 offer was 10.6% below forecast 
and down 28.8% on the previous year. There were only five OZ 
Lotto jackpot events greater than $20 million compared to 15 in 
the previous year. Powerball shared the same trend, with only 
four Powerball events greater than $30 million compared to 
seven the previous year. 

In November 2016, there was a subscription price increase for 
OZ Lotto of 10 cents per game from $1.10 to $1.20. A price rise 
retention rate tracking at over 60% has mitigated the decline in 
OZ Lotto sales this year. 

Set for Life
Set for Life sales were down 10.5% against budget and 5.5% 
against last year’s results. There were eight First Prize winners 
in 2016/17 including one from WA. In 2015/16, there were a total 
of 11 First Prize winners including three from WA. The lack of 
winners contributed to the decline in Set for Life sales. 

Set for Life represented 6.3% of total sales.

Instant tickets – Scratch’n’Win
Scratch’n’Win sales were down 4.6% against budget and on par 
with the previous year.

Sales of Scratch’n’Win have faced a challenging year with the 
highlight being the popularity of the higher price points. The 
continued shift towards higher priced tickets is in line with 
industry trends worldwide.

Scratch’n’Win sales contributed 11.6% to overall sales, mainly 
driven by the performance of the $20 price point and Word Play 
products.

of online sales generated from 
the Lotterywest Mobile App.

of sales came from tickets  
in the $1 - $20 price point

of sales for financial 
year 2016/17

OZ Lotto jackpot 
events greater than

overincrease in 
our Australian 
Lottery Bloc 
share for red 
Lotto games

higher than 
2016/17

higher than 
2016/17

of total sales

SET FOR LIFE

6.3% 43.5%45.6%
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60%
$20M

TACTICAL SALES RED 
LOTTO BLOC SHARES

PLAY ONLINE  
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COMBO PACKSSCRATCH‘N’WIN

0.8% 7.3%31%
11.6%

COMBINED RED LOTTO OZ LOTTO PRICE RISE 
RETENTION RATE

OZ LOTTO  
JACKPOT EVENTS

LOTTERYWEST APP

Ways to Play – Syndicates and Combo Packs
Syndicates and Combo Packs combined contributed 4.6% to 
overall sales. Syndicate sales are made up of: 

•  Syndicates organised by groups of retailers
•  Syndicates offered by individual retailers
•   Syndicates offered by Lotterywest and sold by individual 

retailers across the retail network.

Lotterywest Network Syndicate sales continue to increase, based 
on their availability across the retail network.

Combo Pack sales were on par against budget and 31% higher 
than last year. This is attributed largely to the introduction of 
special events Combo Packs during high jackpot weeks. 

Play Online 
Play Online contributed 8% to overall sales with 43.5% of online 
sales generated from the Lotterywest Mobile App.

Play Online sales were 7.3% higher than last year and this is 
attributed to targeted marketing messaging via the app and 
tactical online promotions such as Friday Frenzy. 

Lotterywest membership 
The new Lotterywest membership will be launched in 2017/18 
and will replace the existing Player’s Card. The total combined 
player membership across Player’s Card and Play Online is 
currently over 290,000 and forecast to increase to 500,000 over 
the next five years. 

The new Lotterywest membership is free to join, offers full prize 
protection and provides a range of benefits to support a great 
player experience.

Products and  
services
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Springs News

“When you play with Lotterywest, the  
money raised goes right back to the  
community. Supporting Lotterywest  
means so much more than the chance  
to win big; it’s an investment in our  
community and an investment in  
everyone’s future.” 

“We love hearing how Lotto luck has 
changed the lives of our winners. We 
love chatting with our customers about 
how they’d spend the money if lady 
luck struck again!” 
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Austin Lakes IGA
Karen James and Tammie Taylor of Austin 
Lakes IGA might be fairly new to the 
Lotterywest retail network, but that hasn’t 
stopped them from churning out prize 
money to South Yunderup locals.

Since opening in October 2016, the duo has 
paid out more than $120,000 in prize money 
and say that their customers love the fact that 
when you play with Lotterywest all of WA wins. 

Springs News is no stranger to lady luck, 
having sold a Division 1 Wednesday Lotto 
ticket worth over $1 million back in 2015.

As if that wasn’t enough for Beechboro locals, a 
year on owners Milan and Denise Vuletich also 
sold a top prize Scratch’n’Win ticket pocketing a 
local a cool $10,000. 

IMAGE: Tammie Taylor and Karen James of Austin Lakes IGA. IMAGE: Milan and Denise Vuletich of Springs News.

Retailer  
profiles
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Our brand A lot happens  
when you play
Our marketing and public relations activities 
centre around a core strategy of strengthening  
the link between players buying our games 
and Lotterywest being able to give back to  
the WA community. 

In 2017 we launched an interim brand campaign with the 
tagline: A lot happens when you play. The key objective was 
to further strengthen the link between playing our games and 
giving back to the people of WA.

In order to communicate the breadth and depth of our support 
of the WA community without being too overwhelming in detail, 
we used four key pillars to describe our overall grants offering 
– conserving environmental and cultural heritage, improving 
health and wellbeing, bringing families and communities 
together, and supporting volunteer and emergency services 
organisations.

Along with an above-the-line media schedule, we brought  
the campaign to life via a number of grant events we’ve  
funded including the Perth International Arts Festival (PIAF), 
FRINGE WORLD Festival and dozens of other smaller  
community celebrations. 

25AGENCY PERFORMANCE

Play Responsibly gamblinghelponline.org.au 1800 858 858

A lot happens 
when you play.

Every time you play Lotterywest games, you support the 

things that make WA great. Last year we gave away $601 

million in prizes and raised $281 million for the community. 

These funds go towards things like events  

that bring families and communities together.  

So thanks for playing.

lotterywest.wa.gov.au

A lot happens 
when you play
$882 million given to the WA community in prizes and grants

Play Responsibly    gamblinghelponline.org.au    1800 858 858
Figure for 2015/16

A lot happens 
when you play

Play Responsibly    gamblinghelponline.org.au    1800 858 858

Figure for 2015/16

$882 million given to the WA community in prizes and grants

A lot happens 
when you play

Every time you play Lotterywest games, you support 

the things that make WA great. Last financial year we 

contributed to nearly a thousand community initiatives, 

including the State’s Returned & Services Leagues.  

These funds helped communities remember and  

share the contribution of the ANZACs  

and all Australian service personnel. 

So thanks for playing.

Play Responsibly gamblinghelponline.org.au 1800 858 858

lotterywest.wa.gov.au
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Play Responsibly  
gamblinghelponline.org.au  1800 858 858
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Our brand
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It’s time to dream super  
big with Lotterywest’s 
Dream Machine
Saturday Lotto Superdraws are important 
events throughout the year which help attract 
occasional players to play Lotto.

To make sure these events stand out from 
other jackpots, we launched a new Superdraw 
branding campaign, and introduced 
Lotterywest’s Dream Machine. 

The Dream Machine was designed to be an icon for Superdraws, 
representing the unsung hero – the Lotto draw machine – and its 
ability in making the West Aussie dream come true.

The Dream Machine was brought to life with a series of TV 
commercials showing a variety of dreams coming true – from a 
young couple being able to own their first new home, a family 
being able to share the holiday experience of travelling on a 
private jet, and a father and daughter being able to elevate their 
passion for astronomy together.

Play Responsibly  
gamblinghelponline.org.au  1800 858 858

Play Responsibly 
gamblinghelponline.org.au  1800 858 858
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Cashcade celebrations
We also launched a brand new promotional event for Monday 
and Wednesday Lotto called ‘Cashcade celebrations’ in April 
2017. During this month, if there were no Division 1 winners 
in either Monday or Wednesday Lotto, the $1 million prize 
would ‘cashcade’ down to be shared amongst the Division 2 
winners. If there were no Division 2 winners, the prize would 
‘cashcade’ down to Division 3 and so on. This promotion 
proved to be popular among our players, with the Division 1 
prize cashcading to be shared among the Division 2 winners 
twice within the month.

Super Saturday
To offer our Saturday Lotto players more value throughout 
the year and encourage them to try other games within the 
portfolio, we ran a Super Saturday promotion in February and 
May 2017. This promotion offered players free Monday and 
Wednesday Lotto tickets if they purchased Saturday Lotto. 
Results were positive, with over 33,000 of our players taking 
advantage of these promotions. We’ll be planning more 
value-added promotions in the future to encourage the cross-
participation of our games.

Our brand
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Scratch’n’Win attracts a youthful market
Building on the Scratch’n’Win brand promise of delivering a 
sense of fun and excitement to Western Australian players, we 
launched the ‘Scratchie Family’ campaign promoting the new 
range of scratchies.

We launched a uniquely bold and vibrant campaign using 
high-impact imagery and colloquial Australian language to 
showcase Scratch’n’Win’s relevance to a younger demographic, 
enticing light players to trial the product. 

The campaign ran across TV, radio, out-of-home, digital, mobile 
and in-store. In a first-to-market for Australia, we used the 
power of ultra violet (UV) light and specialised custom paint 
to deliver a high-impact Adshel bus shelter execution across 
Perth’s CBD. The installation featured hidden messages which 
were revealed and transformed from day to night, adding a new 
dimension to our messaging and bringing the creative to life.

The innovation garnered significant industry media attention 
both locally and abroad with La Fleur’s – the international  
lottery body – releasing two articles about the activation.  
The campaign was well received by players and retailers  
alike, resulting in an increase in average sales across the 
campaign period of 34% compared to the five weeks prior  
to campaign launch.
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Capacity
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Strategic workforce plan
During the year Lotterywest reviewed and published its Strategic 
Workforce Plan 2016/19. The plan highlights key workforce 
challenges facing the organisation and the responses to 
address these.

These challenges include managing and retaining knowledge, 
building and maintaining relevant skill sets, nurturing good 
management practice and ensuring robust performance 
development and management. We started to respond to these 
challenges with initiatives in the following categories:

•  Recruitment and retention
•  Performance development and management
•  Culture and transformation
•  Capability development
•  Embracing technology
•  Financial efficiency
•  Leadership and management
•  Customer focus
•  Relationship and stakeholder management
•  Knowledge management
•  Succession planning
•  Workforce planning.

Organisational development
Lotterywest continues to participate in the intra agency mentoring 
program. This provides an opportunity for five staff to foster their 
professional development by pairing up with either a mentor or a 
mentee from one of five other government agencies.

During the year, the majority of senior and front line managers 
completed tailored leadership and management programs. 
These focussed on supporting managers build their teams, 
deploy critical thinking, manage change, foster innovation and 
manage good and poor performance.

Lotterywest participated in the employee perception survey 
deployed by the Public Sector Commission receiving the highest 
response rate of all participating agencies. The results reflect a 
positive improvement on the 2013 survey results.

Lotterywest continues to participate in the intra agency mentoring 
program, providing an opportunity for five staff to foster their 
professional development by pairing up with either a mentor or a 
mentee from one of five other government agencies. 

During the year the majority of senior and front line managers 
completed tailored leadership and management programs. 
These focussed on supporting managers build their teams, 
deploy critical thinking, manage change, foster innovation and 
manage good and poor performance.

Employee Assistance Program
Lotterywest offers employees access to an independent panel 
of employee assistance service providers. These services 
include confidential professional counselling on work related 
and personal issues and specialist advice for line managers. 
Lotterywest offers critical incident and trauma response 
services to its licensed retailers.

IMAGE: ‘Boorna Waanginy: The Trees Speak’ pictured by Toni 
Wilkinson as part of the Perth International Arts Festival (PIAF). 
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Corporate social 
responsibility
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Responsible gaming
Lotterywest is committed to the World Lottery Association’s 
Responsible Gaming Framework aimed at ensuring responsible 
promotion and management of our games. Principles 
of awareness and best practice embedded across our 
organisation include:

• focusing on research

• an employee awareness program

• a retailer awareness program

• game design measures

• appropriate controls in online gaming channels

• highlighting responsible play in advertising and marketing 
communications

• educating players on responsible play

• ensuring treatment referral is available

• engaging key stakeholders

• reporting and measuring outcomes.

Lotterywest is also a member of the Western Australian 
Problem Gambling Support Service Committee. The Committee 
supports the annual Responsible Gambling Awareness Week 
campaign and an annual program of community awareness. 
The Committee also oversees the provision of gambling 
support services across WA. As part of these support services, 
Lotterywest provides core funding to Centrecare for a state-wide 
gambling support service.

Reconciliation Action Plan
Lotterywest’s Reconciliation Action Plan was reviewed during 
the year. Lotterywest also continues to support Aboriginal 
employment through the Aboriginal Traineeship Program.

Environment and Energy Plan
During the year Lotterywest moved its head office from Osborne 
Park to Subiaco. The new head office is exceptionally energy 
efficient, reflected in its five and a half star NABERS rating.

A key component of the relocation was the reduction of the use 
and storage of paper records. Lotterywest achieved this through 
changes to business processes and practices with improvement 
evident in the drastically reduced amount of storage.

Follow You Printing continues to reduce waste and cost, saving 
over 100 reams of paper over the year.

. 
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Grants

Direct grants

We provide grants to not-for-
profit organisations and local 
government authorities for 
charitable or benevolent purposes. 

Where the money went

Grants by 
organisation type

Our Grants and Community Development model is built on a consultative approach working in partnership with grant customers.

We share and contribute ideas while working with potential applicants and routinely engage with them before applications are 
submitted to advise on the eligibility and suitability of possible requests and support the development of their initiatives to give every 
application the best chance of success. This involves an extensive travel program to engage with regional and remote communities 
as well as grants seminars in metropolitan and regional areas to promote the opportunities available and explain our approach 
and processes to potential customers.

We also take a leadership role, hosting conversations with representatives from community organisations in key sectors to discuss 
how we can help with their challenges as well as working with other funders to ensure we are mutually contributing towards 
coordinated, positive outcomes for communities across WA.

Our grant making is based on four principles:

• Flexible: we adapt our grant making framework to best suit the circumstances of the customer.

• Responsive: we react as promptly and as positively as we can to the needs of our customers.

• Complementary: we look to combine with others in such a way as to enhance or emphasise the qualities and resources of each 
stakeholder, including financial contributions.

• Developmental: we work with our grant customers, if needed, to assist them to grow and develop their ideas and join them with 
others working on similar initiatives.

Working efficiently
Grants processing and average turnaround time for all approved grants in 2016/17 was 65 days, ahead of our target of 70 days. The 
average grant payment time for the year was nine days from the date of payment request, ahead of our target of 10 days.

The value of our approach
In 2017, we carried out market research which emphasised the value that our grants customers place on our approach. Overall 
satisfaction levels were extremely high with clear recognition that the WA community receives significant benefits from our grants 
and community development activities.

We also received valuable feedback on how we could continue to improve the experience of our grant making for our customers.

We will continue to work with them as part of our continuous improvement process.

of grant customers agree that 
Lotterywest grants help create a better 
community for WA.

of grant customers agree that 
Lotterywest grants provide opportunities 
for the not-for-profit sector which would 

not otherwise be available.

$35.9 
million 

$114.2
MILLION

$77.3 
million 

$1 
million

to regional WA

Perth Metro Area 
(includes PIAF & 
Screenwest)

*’Other’ includes religious organisations, not-for-
profit Trusts, tertiary institutions and other entities 
established under legislation.

Based on location of 
organisation awarded 
each grant

to organisations 
based outside WA 

Indigenous corporations

2%

Local Government 
Authorities

15%

Unincorporated 
associations

5%

Not-for-profit companies

7%

Other*

3%
Incorporated 
associations

68%

97%

95%
“Staff demonstrated a genuine interest and enthusiasm 
throughout. Their service went above and beyond.”
Grant customer



Direct grant stories

ORANGE SKY LAUNDRY

CYSTIC FIBROSIS WA

“Our aim is to restore respect 
and raise health standards for 
homeless people.”
Orange Sky Laundry Founder Nic Marchesi 

“Lotterywest funding has enabled us to 
invest in both our physical, human and 
ICT resources to better serve people 
affected by Cystic Fibrosis. We could not 
have become the success we are today 
without the support of Lotterywest. 
Thank you!”
CFWA CEO Nigel Barker 

GRANTSLotterywest Annual Report 2016/17

The duo famous for launching the world’s 
first free mobile laundry and support service 
for homeless people spread to Perth’s 
southern suburbs this year with the support 
of Lotterywest. 

Nic Marchesi and Lucas Patchett founded 
Orange Sky Laundry Inc. in 2014 and were happy 
recipients of a Lotterywest grant of $170,000 to 
roll out two mobile laundry and shower vans 
in Perth. “Lucky” appears daily in spots where 
homeless people already connect with services 
such as shelters and soup kitchens. It washes up 
to 100 kilograms of clothes weekly.

Did you know that in Australia one in every 25 people carry the 
Cystic Fibrosis (CF) gene? That’s a pretty confronting statistic if 
you ask us. 

That’s where Cystic Fibrosis WA (CFWA) comes into play. 

Each and every day CFWA contributes to the social, physical and 
emotional wellbeing of those affected by CF by offering homecare, 
counselling, education, equipment and much more to those in WA 
suffering from CF. 

Since 1989, Lotterywest has been able to support CFWA to the tune of 
29 grants totalling over $1.8 million – contributing more than $132,000 
this year alone. 

IMAGE: Orange Sky Laundry founders 
 Nic Marchesi and Lucas Patchett.

IMAGE: Cystic Fibrosis WA CEO Nigel Barker with 
Lotterywest’s Scott Williams.

Grants
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The Lotteries Commission Act specifies how net gaming 
revenue (i.e. sales less prize payments) is to be distributed to 
beneficiaries. Under the Act, 40% is to be distributed to the 
Department of Health for the support of the State’s hospitals.  
A further 5% is to be distributed to the Sports Lottery 
Account and a further 5% goes to the Arts Lottery Account. 
The respective Minister for each of these portfolios is then 
responsible for the subsequent distribution of these funds.

In total, Lotterywest distributed $151 million 
in statutory grants to Health, Sports and 
the Arts this financial year. 

Lotterywest health funding has helped Lotterywest funding has supported Lotterywest funding has helped support

2.6
ARTS AND CULTURAL 
ORGANISATIONS

LOCAL SPORTING CLUBS
40+ 5000+MILLION 

WESTERN 
AUSTRALIANS

Statutory grants

GRANTS

Grants
“This funding helps Western 
Australia strengthen its position 
as a key destination by presenting 
world-class arts and cultural 
events throughout the year.”
Duncan Ord, Director General of the Department of 
Culture and the Arts

“True sport and active recreation 
isn’t just about winning. The values 
of being active include having fun, 
giving back, showing respect and 
including one and all. They mirror 
our lives on and off the field, as 
team mates and active, connected 
members of our community.” 
Ron Alexander, Director General, Department of 
Sport and Recreation

HEALTH AND HOSPITALS
Lotterywest funding of $120.9 million has been allocated to health projects across the State to help deliver safe, high quality and 
accessible health care to our growing population of 2.6 million Western Australians. The WA health system employs 40,000 
dedicated staff in metropolitan, regional and remote areas of the State. It offers services to the community in hundreds of locations 
spanning an area of 2.5 million square kilometres. In the past 12 months, the WA health system has:

•  received more than one million emergency department visits 

•  performed 86,000 elective surgeries 

•  delivered 25,000 babies. 

As the population of Western Australia continues to grow, so too will the demand for health services. Lotterywest is proud to be able 
to support the growth and development of our State’s health services to benefit the community. 

ARTS AND CULTURE
Lotterywest is a strong supporter of culture and the arts and this year distributed $15.1 million to the Arts and Lotteries Account managed by 
the Department of Culture and the Arts. 

The funding supported more than 40 arts and cultural organisations. It provided an important foundation that organisations could use to 
leverage additional income and stage a diverse calendar of events. 

For instance, it helped enable significant community access to big and small events. These ranged from the FRINGE WORLD Festival – which 
had more than 700 events – through to the intimate chamber performances put on by the innovative Lost and Found opera company. 

SPORT AND RECREATION
The Department of Sport and Recreation encourages participation in sport and active recreation at all levels. This year it distributed  
$15 million from the Sports Lotteries Account which supported a range of programs and organisations around Western Australia.

More than 5,000 local sporting clubs were supported through $8.5 million in funding to 87 State Sporting Associations and 17 peak bodies. 
These ranged from netball and football through to fencing and Parks and Leisure Australia (WA).

Significant funding also went towards:

•  creating active regional communities

•  WA Institute of Sport

•  supporting industry representative organisations

•  WA Disabled Sports Association

•  Western Australian Sports Federation

•   42 club development officers who deliver practical advice and programs to community sporting organisations in 60 local governments 
throughout WA. 



Statutory grants stories

WESTERN AUSTRALIA ON SCREEN

2017 PERTH INTERNATIONAL ARTS FESTIVAL 
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This year 59 productions were filmed in WA 
thanks to the support of Lotterywest. 

Film crews traversed the length and breadth of the State and 
even went underwater bringing our landscapes, stories and 
people to screen including:

•   Connection to Country – filmmaker Tyson Mowarin, a proud 
Ngarluma man based in Roebourne, tells the story of the 
battle of Indigenous people of the Pilbara to preserve 
Australia’s 40,000-year-old rock art and ancient landscape 
from a booming mining industry.

•   Three Summers – from writer/director Ben Elton, the film 
was shot almost entirely at Pinjarra’s historic Fairbridge 
Village with 100 cast and crew.

•   Entertaining factual series Rottnest and the Mystery Islands, 
Wildlife Rescue and Forensic, Born to Cook – Jack Stein Down 
Under, On Country Kitchen, Aussie Gold Hunters Series 2, 
Outback Truckers Series 5 and Railroad Australia Series 2.

Hundreds of thousands of people celebrated their 
connection with each other and the wider world  
during the 65th annual PIAF’s inspiring program of  
art without borders.

PIAF 2017 gave a platform to a multiplicity of voices, whether gathered en masse 
in Kings Park or sharing personal stories one-on-one with artist Amy Sharrocks 
for Museum of Water. 

About 360,000 people embraced the Festival’s vision of big-picture stories 
played out through personal perspectives by more than 700 international artists 
in more than 240 events, one-third of them free.

More than 110,000 people took a wondrous walk of cultural and ecological 
awakening through Kings Park for the stunningly evocative sound and lighting 
effects of the Lotterywest Festival Opening Weekend – Boorna Waanginy: The 
Trees Speak. 

The PIAF Connect initiative created more artistic opportunities for our community 
in 2017. With Arts Access Australia and DADAA, the Festival co-hosted Perth’s 
first national disability arts forum. Visiting artists shared their expertise in 
masterclasses, workshops and artist talks.

The Lotterywest Festival Films program ended on a high note when the 
life-affirming documentary The Music of Strangers won the 2017 Golden 
Deckchair audience award. This was after a stellar season at UWA  
Somerville and ECU Joondalup Pines.

IMAGE: Connection to Country, Weerianna Street Media.

“With Lotterywest’s support, the screen 
industry shares Western Australia’s 

stories and landscapes with the WA 
community, Australia and worldwide.” 

Ian Booth, Chief Executive, Screenwest 

Grants

More than

110,000
people participated in the Lotterywest 
Festival Opening Weekend – Boorna 
Waanginy: The Trees Speak. 

41GRANTS

IMAGE: ‘Boorna Waanginy: The Trees Speak’ pictured by Toni 
Wilkinson as part of the Perth International Arts Festival (PIAF).
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Significant 
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Building a better WA together

Products and services
• An increasingly competitive 

commercial environment

• Maintaining confidence in the 
integrity of the lottery games and 
Lotterywest

• Increased support needs in the 
community sector

• Maintaining brand position and 
reputation

• Target communications, balancing 
existing and new channels

• Continuing to build upon our 
heritage

• Responding to trends in retail distribution 
channels

• Improving access to and awareness of 
Lotterywest grants and services

• Growing digital channel and presence to  
meet our customers’ expectations

• Ensuring the effective distribution of our grants

• Developing organisational capacity

• Building resilience and ability to respond 
quickly to change

• Ensuring we use our resources and systems 
to achieve our identified business strategies

Distribution

Capacity

Communications and branding 

Vision
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EFFECTIVENESS INDICATORS Actual Budget Actual Actual Actual Actual

2016/17 2016/17 2015/16 2014/15 2013/14 2012/13

1.  w Sales Per Adult $402.39 $433.47 $424.88 $404.49 $397.11 $424.19

2.  Total Allocation to Beneficiaries Per Capita $102.45 $107.26 $106.98 $110.28 $107.61 $112.77

3.  Total Allocation to Beneficiaries as a % of Sales 32.1% 31.1% 31.6% 34.2% 34.0% 33.4%

EFFICIENCY INDICATORS Actual Budget Actual Actual Actual Actual

2016/17 2016/17 2015/16 2014/15 2013/14 2012/13

4.  Lottery Expenses as a % of Sales* 7.4% 6.2% 5.5%** 5.7% 5.7% 5.5%

5.  Grants Operations Expenses as a % of Direct Grants Approved 10.7% 16.2% 13.5% 11.7% 12.0% 11.2%

BASE DATA Actual Budget Actual Actual Actual Actual

2016/17 2016/17 2015/16 2014/15 2013/14 2012/13

a. Total Population (million) 2.5897 2.6725 2.6305 2.5654 2.5206 2.4327

b. Adult Population (million) 2.0562 2.1270 2.0935 2.0429 2.0070 1.9349

c. Total Sales (million) $827.39 $922.00 $889.49 $826.35 $796.99 $820.76

d. Total Allocated to Beneficiaries*** $265.32 $286.65 $281.41 $282.90 $271.23 $274.34

e. Total Approved Direct Grants $114.15 $117.00 $118.84 $130.85 $124.46 $123.31

f. Total Lottery Expenses (million) $604.76 $669.87 $636.54 $589.76 $569.66 $584.18

g. Lotteries Expenses (million) $61.16 $56.89 $49.30* $46.72 $45.21 $45.28

h. Grants Operations Expenses (million) $12.25 $18.96 $16.10 $15.32 $14.93 $13.76
Notes:

*     Refer to note 4 overleaf.

**   Reclassification of printing expenses to Cost of Sales resulted in a change in prior year comparison.

***  No adjustment for write back of forfeited grants.

Outcome statement
Lotteries are conducted with the proceeds returned to the 

community of Western Australia

Services
1. Sale of lottery products to the public of Western Australia

2. The provision of grants and other distributions to the 
community of Western Australia

Effectiveness Indicators
1.  This measure shows the effectiveness of Lotterywest 

in entering the players’ market that is considered to 
be the adult population in Western Australia. The 
underperformance against the budget and the previous 
year in sales per adult to budget is a result of an increase 
in competitive market forces, lower than expected jackpot 
levels for the major jackpotting games and subdued 
economic conditions in Western Australia.

  Note: Adult population refers to the number of Western 
Australians of 16 years and over who are permitted by 
the Lotteries Commission Act (1990) to purchase lottery 
products.

2.  This measure relates to Lotterywest’s grant funding 
function which is to provide funds and support to the 
community of Western Australia. The underperformance 
against budget result this year and the previous year is 
a consequence of a lower than anticipated sales result, 
which led to reductions in the direct grant program and 
statutory grants.

3.  This measure shows the effectiveness of Lotterywest in 
converting sales revenue to community grants. This year, 
despite lower sales, Lotterywest exceeded budget and 
prior year level grants by sustaining a grant program 
partially funded from prior year reserve.

Efficiency Indicators
4.  This indicator shows the efficiency of Lotterywest in 

generating its sales revenue. It excludes the Grants 
Operations expenses. 

  As a result of recent changes to organisational structure, 
Lotterywest has reviewed the internal accounting 
allocation between service types in 16/17. This new 
accounting allocation has not been retrospectively applied 
to prior years. This new accounting allocation reflected in 
a greater attribution of expenses to Lottery Operations. 
The significant lower sales result, together with larger 
project costs, had an adverse impact on this indicator in 
comparison to budget and previous year.

5.  This measure shows the ratio of expenditure associated 
with the grants distribution to not for profit and benevolent 
organisations. 

  The favourable result is a reflection of reduced cost 
attributed to grants making and sustaining the grant 
program through the reserve.

Base Data
(a/b) Lotterywest uses population figures sourced from the 

Australian Bureau of Statistics (ABS) in calculating its 
performance indicators. 

 The total population of Western Australia is used for 
community grants indicators as all Western Australians 
benefit from the community funding grants program. 

 The adult population figures are used for Lottery Product 
indicators as only adults (aged 16 years and over) are 
permitted to purchase lottery products in Western 
Australia.

 Beneficiaries refer to the allocation prescribed in the 
Lotteries Commission Act 1990 to the Hospital Fund, 
the Sports Account, the Arts Account and to eligible 
organisations of “approved purposes”.

(c)   This shows Lotterywest’s total annual gross sales for the 
financial year 2016/17. It excludes Other Income derived by 
Lotterywest.

(d)   This item shows the total of all statutory and direct 
grants allocated for 2016/17, including forfeited amounts 
reallocated from prior years. 

(e)   This item shows the total direct grants allocated for 
2016/17, including forfeited amounts reallocated from 
prior years. For the purpose of these Indicators, the Goods 
and Services Tax has been excluded from expense 
calculations.

(f)    Total Lottery Expenses include the cost of sales (including 
prizes and the commission paid) and all operational 
costs associated with selling of lottery products and 
administering the grants funding.

  The Total Lottery Expenses includes Lotteries Operations 
Expenses ($61.2m), Grants Operations Expenses ($12.3m), 
Cost of Sales (which consists of prizes ($465.9m), retailers’ 
commission ($62.5m) and printing of tickets ($2.9m)). 
Payments of GST on the gaming margin are excluded on 
the basis that such payments are refunded by the state 
Government.

(g)   Lottery Expenses include all administrative costs (excluding 
cost of sales) associated with selling of lottery products.

  This figure shows the total operational costs in operating 
the lotteries business. It excludes Cost of Sales, and GST.

(h)   These figures reflect the total costs in undertaking the 
grant making administration and distribution function.

Lotterywest key performance indicators
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Disclosures and legal compliance

Ministerial directives
No ministerial directives were issued during the year. 

Governance disclosures
Enabling legislation
The Lotteries Commission (trading as Lotterywest) operates 
under the Lotteries Commission Act 1990 (the Act) and its 
subsidiary legislation. Lotterywest’s functions under the Act are 
to conduct lotteries and to perform any other function vested by 
the Act (primarily concerning the distribution and administration 
of grants). 

Our subsidiary legislation includes:

• Lotteries Commission Regulations 1991

• Lotteries Commission (Authorised Lotteries) Rules 2016

• Lotteries Commission (Designated Authorities) Regulations 
1998

• Lotteries Commission (Instant Lottery) Rules 1996

• Lotteries Commission (Policy Instruments) Regulations 2010

• Gaming and Wagering Commission (Continuing Lotteries Levy) 
Act 2000

• Gaming and Wagering Commission (Continuing Lotteries Levy) 
Regulations 2000

• Industrial Relations Act 1979

• Interactive Gambling Act 2001 (Cwth)

• Minimum Conditions of Employment Act 1993

• Occupational Safety and Health Act 1984

• Patents Act 1990 (Cwth)

• Privacy Act 1988 (Cwth)

• Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003

• Public Sector Management Act 1994

• Retail Trading Hours Act 1987

• Salaries and Allowances Act 1975

• Spam Act 2003 (Cwth)

• State Records Act 2000

• State Supply Commission Act 1991

• State Superannuation Act 2000

• Statutory Corporations (Liability of Directors) Act 1996

• Superannuation Guarantee Charge Act 1992 (Cwth)

• Superannuation Act 2005 (Cwth)

• Trade Marks Act 1995 (Cwth)

• Unclaimed Money Act 1990

• Workers’ Compensation and Injury Management Act 1981

• Workplace Gender Equality Act 2012 (Cwth)

Other key legislation impacting on Lotterywest’s activities 
include:

• A New Tax System (Goods and Services Tax) Act 1999 (Cwth)

• Associations Incorporation Act 2015

• Auditor General Act 2006

• Betting Control Act 1954

• Betting Control Regulations 1978 

• Charitable Trusts Act 1962

• Competition and Consumer Act 2010 (Cwth)

• Competition Policy Reform (Western Australia) Act 1996

• Copyright Act 1968 (Cwth)

• Corporations Act 2001 (Cwth)

• Corruption, Crime and Misconduct Act 2003

• Disability Services Act 1993

• Electronic Transactions Act 1999 (Cwth)

• Electronic Transactions Act 2011

• Equal Opportunity Act 1984

• Financial Management Act 2006

• Financial Transaction Reports Act 1995

• Financial Transaction Reports Act 1988 (Cth)

• Freedom of Information Act 1992

• Fringe Benefits Tax Act 1986 (Cwth)

• Fringe Benefits Tax Assessment Act 1986 (Cwth)

• Gaming and Betting (Contracts and Securities) Act 1985

• Gaming and Wagering Commission Act 1987

• Gaming and Wagering Commission Regulations 1988

Conflict of interest
Lotterywest provide grants to a broad range of not-for-profit 
beneficiaries. Board members have disclosed a standing 
declaration in respect of any such interests. 

In matters which may extend beyond mere association, Board 
members are required to disclose the full extent of their interest 
and abstain from voting or participating in the decision making 
process.

Contracts with senior officers
At the date of this report, no senior officers, or firms which 
senior officers are members, or entities in which senior 
officers have substantial interest, had any interests in existing 
or proposed contracts with Lotterywest other than normal 
contracts of employment of service.

Directors and officers liability insurance
An insurance policy indemnifies Board members and directors 
(as defined in Part 3 of the Statutory Corporations (Liability of 
Directors) Act 1996) against liability under Section 13 and 14 of 
that Act. The 2016/17 premium was $15,983.

Board and committee remuneration
Name Salary Super Benefit Period of Membership Total

Chair Heather Zampatti 62,475 5,935 12 months 68,410

Member Miriam Borthwick 31,236 2,967 12 months 34,203

Member Stephen Carre 31,236 2,967 12 months 34,203

Member Andrea Hall 31,236 2,967 12 months 34,203

Member Maria Harries 31,236 2,967 12 months 34,203

Member Garry Trinder 31,236 2,967 12 months 34,203

 TOTAL 218,655 20,770 239,425
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Other legal requirements

Disability Access and 
Inclusion Plan outcomes
The current Lotterywest Disability Access and Inclusion 
Plan (2012-17) is in its final year. A number of initiatives were 
implemented to support the Plan’s seven key outcome 
areas. These aim to provide people with disability with the 
same opportunity as other people to access our facilities, 
information, products, services and employment opportunities, 
contribute to public consultation and make complaints. The key 
achievements of 2016/17 were:

•  The design of our new Head Office where the needs of 
people with disability were addressed. This included an open 
design with generous corridor widths and office circulation 
space, wheelchair-friendly reception counter and multiple 
reception seating options

•  A review of furniture and equipment to ensure the workplace 
meets the requirements of people with varying physical 
requirements. For example, Lotterywest provided adjustable 
sit-stand workstations and ergonomic furniture

•  A high-level assessment of our digital channels to  
identify barriers to accessibility and improvement 
opportunities. A range of design improvements  
resulted, including simplification of screens and buttons 
and using colour in ways that promote ease of reading. 
Accessibility considerations are now included as  
standard in digital design.

Lotterywest recently published its 2017-2021 Disability  
Access and Inclusion Plan which is available on Lotterywest’s 
website.

Compliance with Public 
Sector Standards and 
Ethical Codes
Lotterywest, as a public sector agency, is required to comply 
with Public Sector Standards in Human Resource Management 
(HRM) and the Public Sector Code of Ethics. Action taken to 
ensure compliance includes: 

• All employees have access to information about the HRM 
Standards and Commissioner’s Instructions

• Human resource policies and processes are reviewed 
from time to time and aligned to the HRM Standards and 
Commissioner’s Instructions

• Attention is paid to reviewing recruitment decisions for 
compliance with the Employment Standard Filling a Public 
Sector Vacancy.

There were no breaches of standards in 2016/17. 

Disclosures and legal compliance

Other disclosures
Freedom of Information
During the year, one Freedom of Information application was 
received and finalised in 22 days. Two External Reconsideration 
applications were settled by the Office of the Information 
Commissioner resulting from applications received in the 
previous year. 

Public interest disclosures
During the year Lotterywest did not receive any Public Interest 
Disclosures within the meaning of the Public Interest Disclosure 
Act 2003.

Lotterywest expenditure on market research 
in 2016/17

Lotterywest expenditure on advertising 

$ (Incl GST)

Metrix Consulting $33,354

Colmar Brunton Research $3,520

Marketforce $11,204

TOTAL $48,078

$ (Incl GST)

Carat $13,504,866

OMD $3,133,246

TOTAL $16,638,112

$ (Incl GST)

Longtail Communications $740,056

ABNote $19,719

Gettin Hectic  $273,432

Marketforce   $2,678,218

Adcorp $29,188

TOTAL $3,740,613

Lotterywest expenditure on media advertising

Direct mail organisations
Nil

Recordkeeping Plan and Management
During the year, Lotterywest reviewed its Recordkeeping 
Plan which will be implemented in 2017/18. The Plan and 
Recordkeeping Policy are accessible to all staff via  
Lotterywest’s intranet. 

As part of an online training process, new staff are made 
aware of their Recordkeeping Plan responsibilities and 
records compliance requirements. Over 85% of staff have 
completed online training. Staff who have not undertaken 
the training for three years are required to take a refresher 
course. 

The efficiency and effectiveness of Lotterywest’s electronic 
records management system is currently under review. A 
replacement system is expected to be completed in 2017/18.

Lotterywest is also currently reviewing its functional 
Retention and Disposal Authority.

Lotterywest Code of 
Conduct and Public  
Sector Code of Ethics
Lotterywest’s Code of Conduct and the Public Sector Code of 
Ethics are provided to all new staff and are available on the 
Lotterywest intranet.

Confidentiality Agreements and National Police Clearances are 
required of all staff and contractors. 
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Occupational safety, health and injury 
management results
Occupational Safety, Health and Injury Management results for 
2016/17 and comparatives are shown below: 

Measure Actual Results Target
2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

Number of 
fatalities

0 0 0 0

Lost time injury 
and/or disease 
incidence rate

2% 1.4% 0% 0 or 10% 
reduction

Lost time injury 
and/or disease 
severity rate

25% 0% 0% 0 or 10% 
reduction

Percentage of 
injured workers 
returned within 
26 weeks

75% 66% N/A 80% or 
more to 
return 
within 26 
weeks

Percentage 
of managers 
undertaking 
training in 
OSH and injury 
management

70% 70% 25% 80% or 
more to 
be trained

Unauthorised use  
of credit cards
Officers of Lotterywest hold corporate credit cards where their 
functions warrant. Despite each cardholder being reminded 
of their obligations under Lotterywest’s Credit Card Policy, 
seven employees inadvertently used the corporate credit card 
for personal transactions. The matter was not referred for any 
disciplinary action as the Chief Finance Officer noted prompt 
advice and settlement of the personal use amount, and that 
the nature of the expenditure was immaterial, inadvertent and 
characteristic of an honest mistake.

Aggregate amount of personal use expenditure $682

Aggregate amount settled within five working days $52

Aggregate amount settled after five working days $630

Aggregate amount outstanding at balance date $0

Occupational safety,  
health and injury 
management
In accordance with the requirements of the Occupational Safety 
and Health Act 1984 and the Workers’ Compensation and 
Injury Management Act 1981, Lotterywest has appropriate OSH 
policies and injury management systems in place.

Lotterywest’s OSH Committee is the formal mechanism for 
consultation and reporting between management and staff, 
however the committee did not meet during the year.

Lotterywest’s Risk Register and Risk Policies were reviewed 
and updated during the year. A risk management culture and 
approach is evolving across operational activities.
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Risk and audit
Audit and Risk Management Committee
The Audit and Risk Management Committee (ARMC) assists 
the Lotterywest Board in fulfilling its corporate governance and 
oversight responsibilities in relation to financial reports, internal 
control structure, risk management systems and the internal 
and external audit processes. 

Membership of the ARMC comprises: 
Committee Chair – Andrea Hall (Commissioner)
Committee Member – Heather Zampatti (Board Chair)
Committee Member – Stephen Carre (Commissioner)

During the 2016/17 year, the ARMC met on four occasions and 
also undertook a review of its Terms of Reference.

Consulting internal audit services were provided by KPMG 
following a change from consultants Ernst & Young who 
provided the service for the last 10 years.

Risk management
During the year, Lotterywest instigated a new Risk 
Management Framework. The objectives of the  
framework are to: 

• Provide a structured and systematic approach to the process 
of managing risk within Lotterywest

• Provide the Board with confidence that risks are being 
effectively managed throughout the organisation

• Ensure clear accountabilities for risk management

• Define the risk context and risk appetite of Lotterywest

• Provide the tools to identify the inherent, residual and 
acceptable risk levels, assessing the effectiveness of their 
control measures and what actions are to be taken

• Encourage a ‘risk aware’ culture that ensures responsible risk-
taking while ensuring appropriate measures are taken  
to protect the organisation and maintain stakeholder 
confidence

• Ensure that risk management is a living and dynamic 
process, appropriately embedded in business functions and 
operations. 

During the year Lotterywest also updated its Crisis 
Management and Business Continuity Plans. These plans were 
subsequently tested in a simulated exercise.

Significant investment was also undertaken to improve 
Lotterywest’s back up capacity and capability.

Information Security Framework
Lotterywest is certified under the World Lottery Association 
(WLA) Security Control Standard which requires compliance with 
ISO 27001 “Information Security Management”. WLA certification 
fosters continuous improvement of our business, systems and 
key processes. It is vital in driving professionalism and security 
across the organisation. Lotterywest recently underwent the 
re-certification audit process and was successfully accredited to 
the new standard until 25 August 2019.

Lotterywest’s Information Security function was also audited by 
the Auditor General who reported to Parliament in June 2017. 
Lotterywest was identified as “consistently demonstrating good 
management practices across all areas assessed (5 years at 
Level 3 or higher).

Substantive equality 
Lotterywest released its Strategic Workforce Plan (2016-19) 
during the year. The plan has goals, targets and initiatives 
addressing equity and diversity groups across Lotterywest in 
accordance with the Equal Opportunity Act 1984.

During the year Lotterywest achieved an Equity Index for 
women of 81.1 compared to the WA Public Sector average  
of 74.1.

Major capital projects
Total capital expenditure during the year was $13.7 million. 

Expenditure on major capital projects undertaken by the 
organisation was: 

Retail Transformation Project (RTP) $000

New leased fitout $6.419

Corporate network refresh $1.304

IT infrastructure build $1.474

The RTP project has not yet been complete. Third party  
delays and the review of the shop-fit rollout have affected  
the technical component.

Employees
The number of employees at Lotterywest at 30 June 2017 is:

16/17 15/16

Full time permanent 173 157

Full time contract 51 47

Part time (FTE) 14 19

Secondment 3 1

TOTAL 241 224

Disclosures and legal compliance



Statement of Compliance

Hon Mark McGowan, MLA  
Premier

In accordance with Section 63 of the Financial Management Act 
2006, we hereby submit for your information and presentation 
to the Parliament, the Annual Report of the Lotteries 
Commission for the financial year ended 30 June 2017.

The Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with 
the provisions of the Financial Management Act 2006 and the 
Lotteries Commission Act 1990 (as amended).

Certification of Performance Indicators

We hereby certify that the key performance indicators are 
based on proper records, are relevant and appropriate 
for assisting users to assess the Lotteries Commission’s 
performance, and fairly represent the performance of the 
Lotteries Commission for the financial year ended 30 June 2017.

Financial Statements  
For the year ended 30 June 2017
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Certification of Financial Statements for the 
year ended 30 June 2017

The accompanying financial statements of the Lotteries 
Commission have been prepared in compliance with the 
provisions of the Financial Management Act 2006 from proper 
accounts and records to present fairly the financial transactions 
for the financial year ended 30 June 2017 and the financial 
position as at 30 June 2017.

At the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances 
which would render the particulars included in the financial 
statements misleading or inaccurate.

Heather Zampatti Chair 
Accountable Authority 
31 August 2017

Andrea Hall Commissioner 
Accountable Authority 
31 August 2017

Jeremy Hubble Chief Finance 
Officer 
31 August 2017

Heather Zampatti Chair 
Accountable Authority 
31 August 2017

Andrea Hall Commissioner  
Accountable Authority  
31 August 2017
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Statement of financial position as at 30 June 2017

Note 2017
$000

2016
$000

ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 19 21,799 36,917 
Inventories 1,393 1,369 
Receivables 9 8,339 10,634 
Held to Maturity Financial Assets 10 48,289 45,163 
Non Current Assets Classified as Held for Sale 11 615 –
Prepayments 740 469 

Total Current Assets 81,175 94,552 
Non Current Assets

Held to Maturity Financial Assets 10 174,900 182,300 
Property, Plant and Equipment 12 34,799 27,376 
Intangibles 13 10,413 13,671 

Total Non Current Assets 220,112 223,347 
Total Assets 301,287 317,899 

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

Payables 15 165,583 174,496 
Provisions 16 32,104 30,586 
Other Liabilities 17 11,727 9,099 

Total Current Liabilities 209,414 214,181 
Non Current Liabilities

Payables 15 17,220 13,570 
Provisions 16 1,615 1,330 

Total Non Current Liabilities 18,835 14,900 
Total Liabilities 228,249 229,081 
NET ASSETS 73,038 88,818 
EQUITY

Asset Revaluation Reserve 18 6,445 8,540 
Retained Earnings 18 66,593 80,278 

Total Equity 73,038 88,818 

The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 2017
$000

2016
$000

INCOME
Revenue

Sale of Lottery Products 3 827,395 889,487 
Interest Revenue 8,358 9,514 
Other Revenue 4 16,426 14,204 

Total Income 852,179 913,205 

EXPENSES
Cost of Lottery Sales 3 564,303 606,615 
Lotteries Operations 5 61,162 49,296 
Grants and Community Development Operations 6 12,255 16,096 
Returns to Grant Beneficiaries 7 261,153 277,551 

Total Expenses 898,873 949,558 
Loss before Grants from State Government (46,694) (36,353)
Grants from State Government 8 33,009 35,468
Loss for the Period (13,685) (885)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
Items not reclassified subsequently to profit and loss

Changes in Asset Revaluation Surplus 18 (2,095) (622)
Total Other Comprehensive Income (2,095) (622)
Total Comprehensive Loss for the Period (15,780) (1,507)

The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes, 
particularly Note 27 “Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service”.

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note Asset 
Revaluation

$000

Retained  
Earnings

$000

Total  
Equity
$000

Balance at 1 July 2015 9,162 81,163 90,325
Profit/(loss) for the period 18  – (885) (885)
Other comprehensive income 18 (622)  – (622)
Total comprehensive profit/(loss) 
for the period

(622) (885) (1,507)

Balance at 30 June 2016 8,540 80,278 88,818 
Balance at 1 July 2016 8,540 80,278 88,818 
Profit/(loss) for the period 18  – (13,685) (13,685)
Other comprehensive income 18 (2,095)  – (2,095)
Total comprehensive profit/(loss) 
for the period

(2,095) (13,685) (15,780)

Balance at 30 June 2017 6,445 66,593 73,038 

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 2017
$000

2016
$000

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
Receipts

Sale of Lottery Products 832,951 898,539 
Interest Received 8,416 9,700 
GST Receipts on Sales 643 876 
Lease Incentives 5,166 –

Payments
Prizes and Retailers’ Commissions (515,943) (546,435)
Employee Benefits (27,196) (25,061)
Suppliers and Services (41,842) (38,182)
Direct Grants (116,497) (109,152)
GST Payments on Purchases (23,085) (21,973)
GST Payments to Taxation Authority (11,033) (13,749)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 19 111,580 154,563 
Cash Flows from Investing Activities 

Purchase of Non Current Assets (13,727) (8,141)
Proceeds from Non Current  
Assets Classified as Held for Sale

 – 1,494 

Proceeds from Sales of Fixed Assets 10 -
Proceeds from Maturing Investments 4,274 1,039 

Net Cash from Investing Activities (9,443) (5,608)
Cash Flows (to)/from State Government

GST Reimbursements 32,745 35,467 
Statutory Payments to Beneficiaries (150,000) (162,350)

Net Cash (Provided to) State Government (117,255) (126,883)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (15,118) 22,072 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period 36,917 14,845 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period 19 21,799 36,917 

The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.



1. Australian Accounting Standards
Lotterywest’s financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2017 have been prepared in 
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards. The term “Australian Accounting Standards” 
includes Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB).

Lotterywest has adopted any applicable new and revised Australian Accounting Standards from 
their operative dates.

Initial application of an Australian Accounting Standard

Lotterywest has applied the following Australian Accounting Standards effective for annual 
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2016 that impacted on Lotterywest.

AASB 2015-6
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Extending Related Party Disclosures to Not-
for-Profit Public Sector Entities

This Standard extends the scope of AASB 124 to include not-for-profit public sector entities. The 
key impact of the amendments is to specify consistent related party disclosure requirements 
for the Australian Government, State Governments, local councils and other not-for-profit public 
sector entities. The disclosures are located in note 24.

AASB 2015-7
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Fair Value Disclosures of Not-for-Profit Public 
Sector Entities

The objective of this Standard is to make amendments to AASB 13 Fair Value.

Measurement to relieve not-for-profit public sector entities from certain disclosures applying 
to assets within the scope of AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipment whose future economic 
benefits are not primarily dependent on the asset’s ability to generate future net cash inflows.

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2017
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Early adoption of Standards 

Lotterywest cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted 
by Treasurer’s Instruction 1101 Application of Australian Accounting Standards and Other 
Pronouncements. No Standards and Interpretations that have been issued or amended but are 
not yet effective have been early adopted by Lotterywest for the annual reporting period ended 
30 June 2017. Consequently, Lotterywest has not applied the following Australian Accounting 
Standards. 

Future Impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet effective

AASB 9 
1 Jan 2018*
Financial Instruments

AASB 9 includes requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets. It was 
further amended by AASB 2010-7 to reflect amendments to the accounting for financial liabilities. 
These requirements improve and simplify the approach for classification and measurement of 
financial assets compared with the requirements of AASB 139. 

Lotterywest is currently assessing the expected impact when the Standard will be applied for the 
first time. 

AASB 15 
1 Jan 2018*
Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity recognises revenue to depict the transfer of control of 
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which 
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. 

Lotterywest has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard. 

AASB 1058 
1 Jan 2019*
Income of Not-for-Profit Entities

AASB 1058 and AASB 2016-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Australian 
Implementation Guidance for Not-for-Profit Entities will defer income recognition in some 
circumstances for not-for-profit entities, particularly where there is a performance obligation 
or any other liability. In addition, certain components in an arrangement, such as donations, 
may be separated from other types of income and recognised immediately. The Standard also 
expands the circumstances in which not-for-profit entities are required to recognise income for 
goods and services received for consideration that is significantly less than the fair value of the 
asset principally to enable the entity to further its objectives (discounted goods and services), 
including for example, peppercorn leases. 

AASB 16 
1 Jan 2019*
Leases

This standard includes the leases of all assets, with certain exceptions. The new standard 
requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model (subject to 
certain exemptions) in a similar way to finance leases under AASB 117. 

Lotterywest has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the standard.

AASB 2016-2 
1 Jan 2017*
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Disclosure Initiative: Amendments to AASB 
107

This Standard amends AASB 107 Statement of Cash Flows (August 2015) to require entities 
preparing financial statements in accordance with Tier 1 reporting requirements to provide 
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising 
from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.

AASB 2016-4 
1 Jan 2017*
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Recoverable Amount of Non-Cash-
Generating Specialised Assets of Not-for-Profit Entities

This Standard amends AASB 136 to remove references to depreciated replacement cost as a 
measure of value in use for not-for-profit entities and clarify that not-for-profit entities holding 
non-cash-generating specialised assets at fair value in accordance with AASB 13 [under the 
revaluation model in AASB 116 and AASB 138] no longer need to consider AASB 136. 

Not-for-profit entities holding such assets at cost will determine recoverable amounts using 
current replacement cost in AASB 13.

*Operative for reporting periods beginning on/after



2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) General Statement

Lotterywest is a Statutory Authority and a not-for-profit reporting entity that prepares general 
purpose financial statements in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards, the 
Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the 
AASB as applied by the Treasurer’s Instructions. Several of these are modified by the Treasurer’s 
Instructions to vary application, disclosure, format and wording.

The Financial Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer’s Instructions are legislative provisions 
governing the preparation of financial statements and take precedence over the Australian 
Accounting Standards, the Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other 
authoritative pronouncements of the AASB.

Where modification is required and has had a material or significant financial effect upon the 
reported results, details of that modification and the resulting financial effect are disclosed in the 
notes to the financial statements.

(b) Basis of Preparation and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using the 
historical cost convention, except for land and buildings which have been measured at fair value.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements have been 
consistently applied throughout all periods unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and all values are rounded to the 
nearest thousand dollars ($000).

Long Service Leave

In calculating Lotterywest’s long service leave provision, several estimations and assumptions 
have been made. These include expected future salary rates, salary inflation, discount rates, 
employee retention rates and expected future payments. 

Depreciation of Non-current Assets

In providing depreciation of all non-current assets including intangible assets (software 
application), the estimated useful life reflects the consumption of the assets’ future economic 
benefits. 
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(c) Classification of Current and Non-current Assets and Liabilities

Lotterywest presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on current/
non-current classification. An asset is current when it is: 

• Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle; 

• Held primarily for the purpose of trading; 

• Expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting period; or 

• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for 
at least 12 months after the reporting period. 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is classified as current when: 

• It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; 

• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 

• It is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period; or 

• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months 
after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

(d) Income Recognition

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable. Revenue is 
recognised for major business activities as follows:

(i) Sales of goods revenue
 Recognised from the sale of tickets when the significant risks and rewards of ownership 

transfer to the purchaser and can be measured reliably.

 Sales revenue representing gross sales of all games of Lotto, Cash 3, Soccer Pools and 
Super 66, is recorded as at the date of the respective draw. Sales of instant lottery tickets are 
recognised when books of tickets are activated. 

(ii) Grants, donations, gifts or other non-reciprocal contributions
 Revenue from grants, donations, gifts or other non-reciprocal contributions that are not 

contributions by owners are recognised at fair value. Revenue is recognised when Lotterywest 
has obtained control of the contribution (that is usually the date cash is received), it is probable 
that economic benefits will flow to the entity and the amount of the contribution can be 
reliably measured. Contributions of services are only recognised when a fair value can be 
reliably determined and the services would be purchased if not donated. 

(iii) Interest
 Recognised as the interest accrues using the effective interest method.

Gains

Recognised on a net basis. These include gains arising on the disposal of non-current assets and 
some revaluation of non-current assets.

(e) Property, Plant and Equipment

Capitalisation/Expensing of assets

Items of property, plant and equipment and infrastructure costing $5,000 or more are recognised 
as assets and the cost of utilising assets is expensed (depreciated) over their useful lives. Items 
of property, plant and equipment and infrastructure costing less than $5,000 are immediately 
expensed direct to the Statement of Comprehensive Income (other than where they form part of 
a group of similar items which are significant in total).

Initial recognition and measurement

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost.

For items of property, plant and equipment acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the cost is the 
fair value at the date of acquisition. This applies to properties reverted back to Lotterywest.

Where a transfer of beneficial ownership in land and/or buildings from a Trust Estate has 
occurred, at no cost or for nominal cost, the fair value is recognised at the date of the reversion.

Subsequent measurement

After recognition as an asset, Lotterywest uses the revaluation model for the measurement 
of land and buildings and the cost model for all other property, plant and equipment. Land 
and buildings are carried at their fair value less accumulated depreciation on buildings and 
accumulated impairment losses. All other items of property, plant and equipment are carried 
at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Where market evidence is available, the fair value of land and buildings is determined on the 
basis of current market values determined by reference to recent market transactions.

When buildings are revalued by reference to recent market transactions, the accumulated 
depreciation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount 
restated to the revalued amount.

Where market evidence is not available, the fair value of land and buildings is determined on the 
basis of existing use. This normally applies where buildings are specialised or where land use is 
restricted. Fair value for existing use buildings is determined by reference to the cost of replacing 
the remaining future economic benefits embodied in the asset, (i.e. the depreciated replacement 
cost). Where the fair value of buildings is determined on the depreciated replacement cost basis, 
the gross carrying amount and the accumulated depreciation are restated proportionately. 
Fair value for restricted use land is determined by comparison with market evidence for land with 
similar approximate utility (high restricted use land) or market value of comparable unrestricted 
land (low restricted use land).

Valuations of land and buildings are provided annually by the independent valuers and 
recognised with sufficient regularity to ensure the carrying amount does not differ materially from 
the assets fair value at the end of the reporting period (see Note 12 (a)).

The most significant assumptions and judgements in estimating fair value are made in assessing 
whether to apply the existing use basis to assets and in determining estimated economic life. 
Professional judgement by the valuer is required where the evidence does not provide a clear 
distinction between market type assets and existing use assets.

Derecognition

Upon disposal or derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment, any revaluation 
surplus relating to that asset is retained in the asset revaluation reserve.

Depreciation of non-current assets

All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over their 
estimated useful life consistent with the consumption of their future economic benefits.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is provided on the straight line basis, using 
rates which are reviewed annually. Estimated useful lives for each class of depreciable asset:

Buildings 50 years
Leasehold Improvements 12 years
Equipment and Fittings Five to 10 years
Computer Equipment Three to Eight years.

Asset revaluation reserve

The asset revaluation reserve is used to record increments and decrements on the revaluation of 
non-current assets as described in Note 12 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’.



Works of Art

Works of art controlled by Lotterywest are classified as property, plant and equipment. These are 
anticipated to have indefinite useful lives. Their service potential has not, in any material sense, 
been consumed during the reporting period and consequently no depreciation has been 
recognised.

Work in Progress

Costs associated with assets under development for use by Lotterywest are recognised as Work 
in Progress. Once completed, the assets are transferred to the appropriate asset account and 
are depreciated or amortised, as appropriate. No depreciation is provided during construction 
of assets. 

(f) Intangibles

Acquisitions of intangible assets and internally generated intangible assets costing $5,000 or 
more are capitalised. The cost of utilising the assets is expensed (amortised) over their useful 
lives. Costs incurred below $5,000 are immediately expensed directly to the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. For assets acquired at no cost or for nominal 
cost, the cost is their fair value at the date of acquisition.

The cost model is applied for subsequent measurement requiring the asset to be carried at cost 
less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation for intangible assets with a finite useful life is calculated for the period of the 
expected benefit (estimated useful life which is reviewed annually) on the straight line basis. 
All intangible assets controlled by Lotterywest have a finite useful life and zero residual value  
(i.e. computer software is five to eight years).

Computer software

Software that is an integral part of the related hardware is treated as property, plant and 
equipment. Software that is not an integral part of the related hardware is treated as an 
intangible asset. Software costing less than $5,000 is expensed in the year of acquisition.

Development costs

Development costs incurred for an individual project are carried forward when the future 
economic benefits can reasonably be regarded as assured and the total project costs are likely 
to exceed $5,000.
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(g) Impairment of Assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are tested for any indication of impairment 
at each reporting date. Where there is an indication of impairment, the recoverable amount 
is estimated. Where the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, the asset is 
written down to the recoverable amount and an impairment loss is recognised. Where an asset 
measured at cost is written down to recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised in 
profit or loss. Where a previously revalued asset is written down to recoverable amount, the loss 
is recognised as a revaluation decrement in other comprehensive income. 

As Lotterywest is a not-for-profit entity, unless an asset has been identified as a surplus asset, 
the recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and depreciated 
replacement cost.

The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances where an asset’s depreciation is 
materially understated, where the replacement cost is falling or where there is a significant 
change in useful life. Each relevant class of assets is reviewed annually to verify that the 
accumulated depreciation/amortisation reflects the level of consumption or expiration of the 
asset’s future economic benefits and to evaluate any impairment risk from falling replacement 
costs.

Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and intangible assets not yet available for use are 
tested for impairment at the end of each reporting period irrespective of whether there is any 
indication of impairment.

The recoverable amount of assets identified as surplus assets is the higher of fair value less costs 
to sell and the present value of future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset. Surplus 
assets carried at fair value have no risk of material impairment where fair value is determined by 
reference to market based evidence. Where fair value is determined by reference to depreciated 
replacement cost, surplus assets are at risk of impairment and the recoverable amount is 
measured. Surplus assets at cost are tested for indications of impairment at the end of each 
reporting period.

(h) Non-Current Assets Classified as Held for Sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale are recognised at the lower of carrying 
amount and fair value less costs to sell, and are disclosed separately from other assets in 
the Statement of Financial Position. Assets classified as held for sale are not depreciated or 
amortised.

(i) Leases

Lotterywest has a number of government operating lease arrangements for motor vehicles, 
where the lessors retain effectively all of the risks and benefits incident to the ownership of the 
leased asset. Lotterywest also holds operating leases for its business premises. 

Equal instalments of the lease payments are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income 
over the lease term (i.e. on a straight line basis over the lease term), as this is representative of 
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased vehicles and business premises.

Lease incentives received from entering into operating leases are recognised as unearned 
income and amortised on a straight line basis over the life of the lease term.

(j) Financial Instruments

In addition to cash and cash equivalents, Lotterywest has three categories of financial 
instruments:

• Loans and receivables (accounts receivable)

• Held-to-maturity investments (term deposits, floating rate notes)

• Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (prizes and other payables, and returns to 
beneficiaries).

Initial recognition and measurement is at fair value which normally equates to the transaction cost or 
the face value. Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is the face value because there is no 
interest rate applicable and subsequent measurement is not required as the effect of discounting 
is not material.

(k) Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on 
hand and short-term deposits with original maturities of three months or less that are readily 
convertible to a known amount of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in 
value, and bank overdrafts.

Lotterywest did not have any bank overdraft in the current year (2016: Nil).

(l) Inventories

Inventories are valued, on the first-in first-out basis, at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
The inventories comprise instant lottery tickets and other consumables.

(m) Receivables

Receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less an allowance for any 
uncollectible amounts and are non interest bearing. The collectability of receivables is reviewed 
on an ongoing basis and any receivables identified as uncollectible are written-off against the 
allowance account. The allowance for uncollectible amounts (doubtful debts) is raised when 
there is objective evidence that Lotterywest will not be able to collect the debt. The carrying 
amount of receivables is equivalent to fair value as it is due for settlement within 30 days.

(n) Investments and Other Financial Assets

Lotterywest only has investments classified as held-to-maturity investments. At initial recognition, 
all held-to-maturity investments are measured at fair value. The fair value is usually the fair value 
of the consideration given, including any attributable transaction costs.

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates 
are classified as held-to-maturity when the intention and ability to hold to maturity is known. 
Investments intended to be held for an undefined period are not included in this classification.

Held-to-maturity investments are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium 
on acquisition, over the period to maturity. For investments carried at amortised cost, gains and 
losses are recognised in profit and loss when the investments are derecognised or impaired, as 
well as through the amortisation process.

Lotterywest assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial 
asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

(o) Payables

Payables, including amounts not yet billed, are recognised when Lottterywest becomes obliged 
to make future payments as a result of a purchase of assets or services for which settlement 
has not yet occurred. Payables, other than those that relate to prizes and returns to beneficiaries 
[see 2(p) and 2(q)], are generally settled within 30 days and as a result the carrying amount is 
considered to be equivalent to fair value.



(p) Prizes

Division 1 prizes are paid two weeks after the date of the draw, subject to claim. Set for Life’s 1st 
Prize is paid at $20,000 per month for a period of 20 years, except when the winner passes away 
before the payment term is completed, the remaining entitlement to prize payment is to be paid 
as a lump sum to the deceased’s estate.

Set for Life games includes a ‘demand feature’ requiring payment of the remaining face value of the 
prize upon the death of a winner. As a result, fair value reflects value at the earliest time the demand 
event could arise resulting in fair value reflecting the remaining face value of unpaid prizes.

Other prizes are paid upon receipt of a valid winning ticket, which remains valid for up to 
12 months from the date of draw.

Prize liabilities are recognised by draw for Lotto, Super 66, Cash 3 and Soccer Pools and 
activation of instant lotteries by retailers.

(q) Returns to Beneficiaries

Statutory Grants are recognised in accordance with Section 22 of the Act. 

Direct grants to eligible organisations for approved purposes are recognised when approved 
by the Minister. Unconditional grants are paid in full within days of the Minister’s approval. 
Conditional grants are paid as and when conditions are fulfilled.

When a grant is not taken up, it is written back against the current year’s grant expenditure, 
regardless of when it was approved.

(r) Provisions

Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing and amount. Lotterywest only recognises a provision 
where there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and when the 
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is probable and a reliable estimate can be 
made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Provisions – Prize Reserve

Lotterywest has a prize reserve fund to ensure sufficient funding is available for jackpots and 
bonus draws. The levels of prize reserves are administered by the Australian Lotto Bloc following 
pre-determined guidelines and funded by way of an allocation from each draw into the 
respective prize reserve funds.
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Provisions - Employee Benefits 

Annual leave and long service leave

All annual leave and unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current 
liabilities as Lotterywest does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability 
for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period. 

Annual leave and long service leave not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after 
the end of the reporting period is considered to be “other long-term employee benefits”. The 
annual leave and long service leave liability is recognised and measured at the present value 
of amounts expected to be paid when the liabilites are settled using the remuneration rate 
expected to apply at the time of settlement. Leave liabilities are in respect of services provided by 
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

When assessing expected future payments, consideration is given to expected future wage and 
salary levels including non-salary components such as employer superannuation contributions, 
as well as the experience of employee departures and periods of service.

The expected future payments are discounted to present value using market yields at the end of 
the reporting period on national government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as closely 
as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

Sick leave

Liabilities for sick leave are recognised when it is probable that sick leave paid in the future 
will be greater than the entitlement that will accrue in the future. Past history indicates that on 
average, sick leave taken each reporting period is less than the entitlement accrued. This is 
expected to continue in future periods. Accordingly, it is unlikely that existing accumulated 
entitlements will be used by employees and no liability for unused sick leave entitlements 
is recognised. As sick leave is non-vesting, an expense is recognised in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income for this leave as it is taken.

Deferred leave

The provision for deferred leave relates to Public Service employees who have entered into 
an agreement to self-fund an additional 12 months leave in the fifth year of the agreement. 
The provision recognises the value of salary set aside for employees to be used in the fifth year. 
This liability is measured on the same basis as annual leave. Deferred leave is reported as a 
current provision as employees can leave the scheme at their discretion at any time.

Purchased leave

The provision for purchased leave relates to Public Service employees who have entered into 
an agreement to self-fund up to an additional 10 weeks leave per calendar year. The provision 
recognises the value of salary forgone by employees and is measured at the undiscounted 
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. 

Superannuation

The Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB) and other fund providers administer 
public sector superannuation arrangements in Western Australia in accordance with legislative 
requirements. Eligibility criteria for membership, in particular schemes for public sector 
employees, vary according to commencement and implementation dates.

Eligible employees contribute to the Pension Scheme, a defined benefit pension scheme closed 
to new members since 1987, or the Gold State Superannuation Scheme (GSS), a defined benefit 
lump sum scheme closed to new members since 1995.

Employees who commenced employment prior to 16 April 2007 who were not members of 
either the Pension Scheme or the GSS became non-contributory members of the West State 
Superannuation Scheme (WSS). Employees who commenced employment on or after 16 April 
2007 became members of the GESB Super Scheme (GESBS). From 30 March 2012, existing 
members of the WSS or GESBS and new employees can choose their preferred superannuation 
fund provider. Lotterywest makes concurrent contributions to GESB or other fund providers on 
behalf of employees in compliance with the Commonwealth Government’s Superannuation 
Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992. Contributions to these accumulation schemes extinguish 
Lotterywest’s liability for superannuation charges in respect of employees who are not members 
of the Pension Scheme or GSS.

The Pension Scheme and the pre-transfer benefit for employees who transferred to the GSS 
are defined benefit schemes. These benefits are wholly unfunded and the liabilities for future 
payments are provided at the end of the reporting period. The liabilities under these schemes 
have been calculated separately for each scheme annually by GESB’s actuaries using the 
projected unit credit method.

The expected future payments are discounted to present value using market yields at the end of 
the reporting period on national Government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as closely 
as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

The GSS, the WSS, and the GESBS, where the current service superannuation charge is paid 
by Lotterywest to the GESB, are defined contribution schemes. The liabilities for current service 
superannuation charges under the GSS, the WSS, and the GESBS are extinguished by the 
concurrent payment of employer contributions to the GESB.

The GSS Scheme is a defined benefit scheme for the purpose of employees and whole of 
Government reporting. However, from Lotterywest’s perspective, apart from the pre-transfer 
benefits, it is a defined contribution plan under AASB 119 Employee Benefits.

Superannuation expense

Superannuation expense is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in profit or 
loss for defined contribution plans, including the concurrent payment of employer contributions to 
the GSS scheme, as and when the contributions fall due.

Subject to materiality for defined benefit plans (the Pension Scheme and the pre-transfer 
component of the GSS), changes in the defined benefit obligation may be recognised in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income either in profit or loss, or, other comprehensive income as 
follows:

• Profit or loss:
 – current service cost;
 – past service cost; and
 – interest cost.

• Other comprehensive income:
 – actuarial gains and losses.

Provisions – Other

Employment on costs

Employment on-costs, including workers’ compensation insurance and payroll tax, are not 
employee benefits and are recognised separately as liabilities and expenses when the 
employment to which they relate has occurred. Employment on-costs are included as part of 
‘Other expenses’ and are not included as part of Lotterywest’s ‘Employee benefits expenses’. 
The related liability is however included in ‘Employee on-costs provision’.



(s) Accrued Salaries

Accrued salaries represent the amount due to staff but unpaid at the end of the financial year, 
as the end of the last pay period for that financial year does not coincide with the end of the 
financial year. Accrued salaries are settled within a fortnight of the end of the financial year.

Lotterywest considers the carrying amount of the accrued salaries to be equivalent to the fair value.

(t) Assets and Services Received Free of Charge or for Nominal Cost

Assets and resources received free of charge or for nominal cost that Lotterywest would 
otherwise purchase if not donated, are recognised as income at the fair value of the assets 
or services where they can be reliably measured. A corresponding expense is recognised for 
services received. Receipts of assets are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position.

Assets and services received from other State Government agencies are disclosed separately 
under Income from State Government in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(u) Goods and Services Tax and Grants from State Government

The Goods and Services Tax (GST) is not applied to the consumption of gambling services.  
It is, however, applied to the gambling margin defined as the subscription less the amount 
of prizes. Accordingly, the State Government provides reimbursement to gambling operators 
(including Lotterywest) for GST paid on the operators’ margin. Lotterywest applies the 
reimbursement to maintain the level of returns to beneficiaries.

The GST paid on the operating margin is disclosed as a cost of producing trading profit  
(see Note 3). Treasurers’ Instruction 1102 also requires the reimbursement of the GST to be disclosed 
as a Grant from the State Government rather than offset against the cost to which it applies.

In accordance with GST legislation, GST is now attributed to the full amount of sales in advance. 

(v) Foreign Currency Translation

Transactions denominated in a foreign currency are initially translated into Australian currency at 
the rates of exchange applicable at the date of the transaction. At the reporting date, amounts 
payable and receivable in foreign currencies are translated to Australian currency at rates 
of exchange at that date. Resulting exchange gains and losses (if any) are recognised in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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(w) Comparative Figures

Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified to be comparable with the figures 
presented in the current financial year.

(x) Changes in Accounting Estimates

During the current financial year, the estimated useful life of an intangible asset being the 
Electronic Data Records Management System was revised from six years to four years to better 
reflect the nature of this investment and the likely economic life in which the asset is capable 
of operating. This change in estimates has been recognised prospectively in the financial 
statements from 1 July 2016. The effects of the above-mentioned changes on the annual financial 
statements for the year ended 30 June 2017 and future periods are as follows:

Amortisation expense 2017 
$000

2018 
$000

2019 
$000

2020 
$000

New amortisation method 954 954 – –

Old amortisation method 477 477 477 477

Difference 477 477 (477) (477)

(y) Reporting Entity

The reporting entity is the Lotteries Commission (trading as Lotterywest).

3. Trading Profit
2017 
$000

2016 
$000

Sales of Lottery Products 827,395 889,487 

Cost of Lottery Sales

Prizes (465,936) (500,133)

Printing Costs (2,866) (3,051)

Commission Paid to Retailers (62,492) (67,963)

Goods and Services Tax [see Note 2(u)] (33,009) (35,468)

(564,303) (606,615)

Trading Profit 263,092 282,872 

Allocation of prize monies range between 50% to 63.25% of sales, however some individual 
prizes are allocated as high as 70%. The prize allocation for games is determined by the National 
Bloc members participating in the national Lotto games, except for the gaming products which 
are run directly by Lotterywest.

Retailers are paid a commission for the sale of Lotterywest products. 

4. Other Revenue
2017 
$000

2016 
$000

Forfeited Prizes 11,635 8,915 

Retailers Fees 4,447 4,594 

Players Registration Service Fees 64 95 

Other Revenue 280 600 

16,426 14,204 

5. Lotteries Operations
2017
$000

2016
$000

Employee Benefits Expenses 19,243 16,565 

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 4,930 2,974 

Telecommunications and Gaming System Expenses 5,410 4,821 

Sales, Marketing and Distribution Expenses 20,868 21,790 

Loss on Non-Current Assets Classified as Held-for-Sale 1 120 

Other Expenses(a) 10,710 3,026 

61,162 49,296

6. Grants and Community Development Operations
2017
$000

2016
$000

Employee Benefits Expenses 8,070 9,032 

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 1,765 2,240 

Other Expenses(a) 2,420 4,824 

12,255 16,096 
(a)  Total Other Expenses (Note 5 and Note 6) includes professional fees ($2.46m), Retail Transformation Project 

(RTP) operating expenses ($1.7m), property lease ($1.1m), and property facility expenses ($1.0m).



7. Returns to Grant Beneficiaries
The Act prescribes for the following allocations from net subscriptions of all products:

Statutory Allocations

These grants are made to the credit of the Consolidated Account for subsequent appropriation to 
Agency Special Purpose Accounts.

• 40% to the State Pool Account of the State established under National Health Funding Pool 
Act 2012 

• 5% to the Arts Lotteries Account 

• 5% to the Sports Lotteries Account.

Direct Grants

In addition to the statutory allocations, the Act mandates a minimum allocation of 12.5% to 
eligible organisations for approved purposes and up to 5% in total for The University of Western 
Australia for the Perth International Arts Festival and Screenwest for Commercial Film Production. 
Any remaining surplus (including surplus reserves generated from prior periods and unclaimed 
prizes as they fall due in the reporting period) is available for distribution to eligible organisations 
as the Commission thinks fit and the Minister approves.

Summary of 2017 Grants Program 2017
$000

2016
$000

State Pool Account (under National Health Funding Pool 
Act 2012)

120,934 130,054 

Arts Lotteries Account 15,116 16,257 

Sports Lotteries Account 15,116 16,257 

The University of Western Australia (Perth International Arts Festival) 7,793 7,603 

Screenwest (Commercial Film Production) 7,793 7,603 

Direct Grants (Net of Grants not taken up)(a) 94,401 99,777 

261,153 277,551 
(a)  The total of grants not taken up during the financial year, and reversed, was $4.165 million (2016: $3.86 million).

10. Held to Maturity Financial Assets 
Lotterywest’s financial investments are made in accordance with the Financial Management Act 
2006 and the Trustees Act 1962 (as amended).

2017
$000

2016
$000

Current Investments (maturity less than 1 year)

Short Term Products 48,289 45,163 

Non-current Investments (maturity more than 1 year)

Floating Rate Instruments 174,900 182,300 

Total Held-to-Maturity Financial Assets(a) 223,189 227,463
(a) Market value at 30 June 2017 was $224.73 million.

11. Non-current Assets Classified as Held for Sale
Assets Reclassified as Held for Sale 2017

$000
2016
$000

Land and Building(a) 615 1,614 

Less write-down from cost to fair value less cost to sell 
recognised in profit or loss 

 – 

Less assets sold (1,614)

615  – 
(a) Transferred from Property, Plant, and Equipment at fair value.

8. Grants from State Government 
2017
$000

2016
$000

GST reimbursement for gambling margin [See Note 2(u)] 33,009 35,468

9. Receivables
2017
$000

2016
$000

Current

Lotterywest Retailers 4,353 3,395 

GST Receivable 2,506 1,776 

Accrued Interest 1,175 1,233 

Other Debtors 305 4,230 

8,339 10,634 

67FINANCIAL STATEMENTS66 Lotterywest Annual Report 2016/17

12. Property, Plant and Equipment
2017
$000

2016
$000

Land at Fair Value(a) 6,329 7,172 

Buildings at Fair Value(a) 5,326 7,373 

Buildings Accumulated Depreciation  – –

5,326 7,373 

Leasehold Improvements at Cost 5,385 1,440 

Less Accumulated Depreciation (299) (1,359)

5,086 81 

Equipment and Fittings at Cost 8,171 6,015 

Less Accumulated Depreciation (5,557) (5,202)

2,614 813 

Works of Art at Cost 121 92 

Computer Equipment at Cost 19,103 15,631 

Less Accumulated Depreciation (15,713) (15,100)

3,390 531 

Work In Progress at Cost 11,933 11,314

Total Net Book Value of Property, Plant and Equipment 34,799 27,376
(a)  Land and building were revalued in 2016/17 by two independent valuers (Western Australian Land 

Information Authority Valuation Services and LMW Perth). The valuations were performed during the 
year ended 30 June 2017 and recognised at 30 June 2017. Land and Building above include revaluation 
decrements of $2.095 million (2016: decrement of $0.622 million). Information on fair value measurements 
is provided in Note 14.



Reconciliations

2017

Land

$000

Buildings

$000

Leasehold
Improvements

$000

Equipment & 
Fittings

$000

Works  
of Art
$000

Computer 
Equipment

$000

Work in  
Progress

$000

Total

$000

Carrying Amount at Start of Year 7,172 7,373 81 813 92 531 11,314 27,376

Additions – – 5,199 2,118 29 2,759 2,741 12,846 

Transfer from Work in Progress – – 186 82 – 713 – 981 

Transfer to Non-Current Assets – – – – – – (1,976) (1,976)

Classified as Held-for-Sale (330) (285) – – – – – (615)

Revaluation (513) (1,582) – – – – – (2,095)

Derecognition – – – (11) – – (146) (157)

Depreciation – (180) (380) (388) – (613) – (1,561)

Carrying Amount at End of Year 6,329 5,326 5,086 2,614 121 3,390 11,933 34,799 

2016

Land

$000

Buildings

$000

Leasehold 
Improvements

$000

Equipment & 
Fittings

$000

Works  
of Art
$000

Computer 
Equipment

$000

Work in  
Progress

$000

Total

$000

Carrying Amount at Start of Year 7,715 7,619 240 1,006 78 787 4,131 21,576

Additions – – – 49 14 37 7,614 7,714

Transfer from Work in Progress – – – – – – – –

Transfer to Non-Current Assets – – – – – – (431) (431)

Classified as Held-for-Sale – – – – – – – –

Revaluation (543) (79) – – – – – (622)

Derecognition – – – – – – – –

Depreciation – (167) (159) (242) – (293) – (861)

Carrying Amount at End of Year 7,172 7,373 81 813 92 531 11,314 27,376

14. Fair Value Measurements
Assets Measured at Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value

at End of
Period

2017 $000 $000 $000 $000

Non-current Assets Classified as Held for 
Sale (Note 11)

– 615 – 615 

Land (Note 12) – 6,329 – 6,329 

Building (Note 12) – 5,326 – 5,326 

– 12,270 – 12,270 

Assets Measured at Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value
at End of

Period
2016 $000 $000 $000 $000

Non-current Assets Classified as Held for 
Sale (Note 11)

– – – –

Land (Note 12) – 7,172 – 7,172 

Building (Note 12) – 7,373 – 7,373 

– 14,545 – 14,545 

Valuation techniques to derive Level 2 fair values

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 or 3 during the period.

Level 2 fair values of Non-current Assets Held for Sale, Land and Building (Office Accommodation) 
are derived using the market approach. Market evidence of sales prices of comparable land and 
buildings (office accommodation) in close proximity is used to determine price per square metre.

Non-current assets held for sale have been written down to fair value less costs to sell.

13. Intangibles
2017
$000

2016
$000

Computer Software 41,553 39,677 

Less Accumulated Amortisation (31,140) (26,006)

10,413 13,671 

Reconciliation

Carrying Amount at Start of Year 13,671 17,166 

Additions 881 427 

Transfer from Work in Progress 995 431 

Amortisation Expense (5,134) (4,353)

Carrying Amount at End of Year 10,413 13,671 
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16. Provisions
2017
$000

2016
$000

CURRENT

Employee Benefits Provision

Annual Leave(a) 2,475 2,311 

Long Service Leave(b) 2,886 3,208 

Other Provisions

Employee On-Costs(c) 346 356 

Prize Reserve Provision(d) 26,397 24,711 

32,104 30,586 

NON-CURRENT

Employee Benefits Provision

Long Service Leave(b) 1,313 1,033 

Superannuation Entitlements(e) 218 231 

Other Provisions

Employee On-Costs(c) 84 66 

1,615 1,330 

Total Provisions 33,719 31,196
(a)  Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer 

settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual 
settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:

2017
$000

2016
$000

Annual Leave

Within 12 months 1,488 1,438 

More than 12 months 987 873 

2,475 2,311
(b)  Long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no unconditional right to defer 

settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual 
settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:

15. Payables
2017
$000

2016
$000

CURRENT

Prizes

Unclaimed Prizes in Current Year(a) 23,578 27,957 

Unpaid Prize Payables(b) 1,010 770 

24,588 28,727 

RETURNS TO BENEFICIARIES

State Pool Account  
(under National Health Funding Pool Act 2012)

1,530 596 

Arts Lotteries Account 190 74 

Sports Lotteries Account 190 74 

Direct Grants(c) 129,220 135,730 

131,130 136,474

OTHER

Trade Creditors 3,788 3,648 

Other Creditors and Accruals 6,077 5,647 

9,865 9,295 

165,583 174,496 

NON CURRENT

Prizes

Unpaid Prize Payables(b) 17,220 13,570 

Total Payables 182,803 188,066 
(a)  Lotterywest game prizes are payable as a one off lump sum payment which must be claimed within 

12 months of winning the prize. This payable represents the amount of prizes won but not yet claimed.

(b)  This liability represents a discontinued Scratch‘n’Win game where the prize is paid in the form of an 
annuity and the proportion of Set for Life 1st prize. Amounts payable more than 12 months post balance 
sheet date are classified as non-current. 

(c)  This relates to direct grants approved but not yet paid at year end. 

Pre-transfer Benefit Gold State Superannuation Scheme

2017
$000

2016
$000

Defined Benefit Obligation 218 231

Net Defined Benefit Liability 218 231

Reconciliation of the Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO)

Present Value of defined benefit Obligations at Beginning of the Year 231 230 

Interest Cost(a) 5 6 

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses Arising from Changes in Demographic 
Assumptions(a) – –

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses Arising from Changes in Financial 
Assumptions(a) – 3 

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses Arising from Liability Experience(a) (12) (8)

Benefits paid (6)  –

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations at End of the Year 218 231 
(a)  Due to the immaterial effect of actuarial (gains)/losses in the defined benefit obligation, the net 

movements have been recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income – Expenses Lottery 
Operations.

 
2017
$000

2016
$000

Long Service Leave

Within 12 months 1,254 1,196 

More than 12 months 2,945 3,045 

4,199 4,241
(c)  The settlement of annual leave and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the payment of employment 

on-costs including workers’ compensation insurance. The provision is the present value of expected future 
payments. The associated expense, apart from the unwinding of the discount (finance cost), is disclosed in 
Note 5 and Note 6 (Other Expenses).

(d)  The prize reserve provision is used to guarantee jackpots and bonus draws in the jackpotting lottery 
games and the advertised prizes on the non-jackpotting games. The settlement of the prize reserve 
provision is expected within the next 12 months.

(e)  The liability for superannuation entitlements has been derived from information provided by GESB. 
Lotterywest has no liability or expense under AASB 119 Employee Benefits arising from the Pension 
Scheme.

Pension Scheme

Lotterywest has no liability or defined benefit cost under AASB 119 arising from the Pension 
Scheme.

Gold State Super (transferred benefits)

Nature of the benefits provided by the Scheme

Some former Pension Scheme members have transferred to Gold State Super. In respect of their 
transferred benefit the members receive a lump sum benefit at retirement, death or invalidity 
which is related to their salary during their employment and indexed during any deferral period 
after leaving public sector employment.

Description of the regulatory framework

The Scheme operates under the State Superanniation Act 2000 (Western Australia) and the 
State Superannuation Regulations 2001 (Western Australia). Although the scheme is not formally 
subject to the Superannuation Industry (Supervision) (SIS) legislation, the Western Australian 
Government has undertaken (in a Heads of Government Agreement) to operate the scheme in 
accordance with the spirit of the SIS legislation.
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Movements in Other Provisions

Movements in each class of provisions during the financial year, other than employee benefits 
are set out below:

2017
$000

2016
$000

Prize Reserve Provision

Carrying Amount at Start of Year 24,711 25,613 

Additional Provisions Recognised 49,305 52,141 

Payments made to the Prize Reserve Account(a) and Prizes Paid (47,619) (53,043)

Carrying Amount at End of Year 26,397 24,711 

Employment On-Cost Provision

Carrying Amount at Start of Year 422 389 

Additional/(Reversals of) Provisions Recognised 172 149 

Payment/Other Sacrifices of Economic Benefit (164) (116)

Carrying Amount at End of Year 430 422 
(a)  Prize Reserve Accounts are managed and operated by each State and the administration is provided by 

the Bloc.

17. Other Liabilities
2017
$000

2016
$000

Sales in Advance(a) 7,235 5,720 

Lease Incentive unearned income(b) 4,492 3,379 

11,727 9,099 
(a)  This represents tickets sold which relate to games where the draw will occur after the financial year and 

therefore the proceeds have not been recognised as revenue for the period. 

(b)  Lease incentives received from entering into operating leases and amortised on a straight line basis over 
12 years, representing the life of the lease term.

Significant Actuarial Assumptions at the Reporting Date

Assumptions to Determine Start of Year DBO and  
Defined Benefit Cost for the Current Year

2017
%

2016
%

Discount Rate (Active Members)(a) 2.26 2.74

Expected Salary Increase Rate 3.50 4.00

Assumptions to Determine DBO at the Valuation Date
2017

%
2016

%

Discount Rate (Active Members)(a) 2.26 2.26

Expected Salary Increase Rate 3.70 3.50
(a) The discount rate is based on the 10 year Government bond rate as at 31 May 2017.

Funding Arrangements

The employer contributes, as required, to meet the benefits paid.

Expected Contributions

Employer contributions of $218,000 (2016: $39,000) are expected to be paid to the Gold State 
Superannuation Scheme in the subsequent annual reporting period.

Maturity Profile of DBO

The weighted average duration of Lotterywest’s defined benefit obligation is less than 1 year 
(2016: 4.4 years).

The recognition of the liability consequently has a minor effect on the year-end asset position of 
Lotterywest; therefore no sensitivity analysis is relevant.

Reconciliation of Profit to Net Cash Flows provided by Operating Activities

2017
$000

2016
$000

Profit/(Loss) for the Period (13,685) (885)

Non cash items

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 6,695 5,214 

Lease Incentive Amortisation (336) –

Net (Gain)/Loss on Disposal 1 120 

Loss on De-recognition 146 –

Cash Flows to/(from) Government

Statutory Grants 151,166 162,568 

GST Recoup Revenue from State Government (33,009) (35,468)

(Increase)/decrease in assets

GST Reimbursement Receivable/(Payable) (730) 621 

Trade Debtors (958) 3,944 

Other Debtors 3,925 (4,219)

Prepayments (271) (76)

Inventories (24) (527)

Accrued Interest 58 186 

Increase/(decrease) in liabilities

Other Liabilities 2,964 4,038 

Direct Grants (6,510) 5,831 

Unclaimed Prize Payable (4,379) (939)

Unpaid Prize Payable 3,890 14,090 

Trade Creditors 140 (388)

Other Creditors and Accruals 430 818 

Current Provisions (168) 462 

Non-Current Provisions 285 74 

Prize Reserve Provision 1,686 (902)

Grants from State Government 264 1 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities before Cash Flows to 
State Government (Excluding Investing Activities)

111,580 154,563

Equity
The Western Australian Government holds the equity interest in Lotterywest on behalf of 
the community. Equity represents the residual interest in the net assets of Lotterywest.  
The asset revaluation surplus represents that portion of equity resulting from the revaluation of 
non-current assets.

2017
$000

2016
$000

Asset Revaluation Reserve(a)

Balance at Start of Year 8,540 9,162 

Asset Revaluation (Decrements)/Increments (2,095) (622)

Balance at the end of the period 6,445 8,540 

Retained Earnings(b)

Balance at Start of the Year 80,278 81,163 

Loss for the Period (13,685) (885)

Balance at the end of the period 66,593 80,278 

Total Equity 73,038 88,818 
(a)  The asset revaluation reserve records increments/decrements in the fair value of land and buildings. 

Decrements are recognised in this reserve only to the extent that they were previously recognised as 
increments on the same class of asset.

(b)  This represents the retained earnings at the end of the reporting period and details the level of 
accumulated profits from previous years.

19. Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows
Reconciliation of Cash

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to 
related items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:

2017
$000

2016
$000

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash on Hand 1 37 

Cash at Bank 21,798 36,880 

Total per Statement of Cash Flows 21,799 36,917 
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20. Depreciation and Amortisation Expense
2017
$000

2016
$000

Depreciation

Buildings 180 167 

Leasehold Improvements 380 159 

Equipment and Fittings 388 242 

Computer Equipment 613 293 

Total Depreciation 1,561 861 

Amortisation

Intangible Assets 5,134 4,353 

Total Amortisation 5,134 4,353 

Total Depreciation and Amortisation 6,695 5,214 

21. Assets and Services Received Free of Charge
2017
$000

2016
$000

Legal Services provided by the State Solicitor’s Office 30 83

22. Remuneration of Auditor
The total fees to the Auditor General for statutory audits are as follows:

2017
$000

2016
$000

Auditing the accounts, financial statements and performance indicators 126 124

23. Compensation of Key Management Personnel
The Commission has determined that Key Management Personnel include State Government 
Ministers, our Minister, the WA Premier (current and past), Lotterywest’s Board members, 
CEO and Senior Executive Scheme (SES) designated Senior Officers. However, the Commission 
is not obligated to compensate Ministers and therefore disclosures in relation to Ministers’ 
compensation may be found in the Annual Report on State Finances.

Compensation of members of the accountable authority 

Compensation Band ($)
2017

No.
2016

No.

10,001 - 20,000 – 1

30,001 - 40,000 5 5

50,001 - 60,000 – 1

60,001 - 70,000 1 –

6 7

2017
$000

2016
$000

Short term employee benefits 239 234

Post-employment benefits  –  –

Other long term benefits –  –

Termination benefits –  –

Total compensation of members of the accountable authority 239 234 
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Compensation of Senior Officers 

Compensation Band ($)
2017

No.
2016

No

20,001 - 30,000 – 1

50,001 - 60,000 – 1

160,001 - 170,000 1 1

170,001 - 180,000 – 1

200,001 - 210,000 2 1

210,001 - 220,000 3 1

220,001 - 230,000 – 2

380,001 - 390,000 – 1

710,001 - 720,000(a) 1 –

7 9

(a) Includes Termination benefits.

2017
$000

2016
$000

Short term employee benefits 1,546 1,628 

Post-employment benefits – –

Other long term benefits 47 44 

Termination benefits 339 –

Total compensation of Senior Officers 1,932 1,672 

24. Related Party Transactions 
The Commission is a wholly owned and controlled entity of the State of Western Australia. 
In conducting its activities, the Commission is required to pay various taxes and levies based on 
the standard terms and conditions that apply to all tax and levy payers to the State and entities 
related to the State.

Related parties of the Commission include:

• All Ministers and their close family members, and their controlled or jointly controlled entities;

• All senior officers and their close family members, and their controlled or jointly controlled 
entities;

• Other departments and public sector entities, including related bodies included in the whole 
of Government consolidated financial statement;

• Associates and joint ventures, that are included in the whole of Government consolidated 
financial statement; and

• The Government Employee Superannuation Board (GESB).

Significant transactions with Government related entities:

• Services received free of charge (Note 21);

• Vehicle lease rental payments to the Department of Finance during the year 30 June 2017 was 
$0.1 million (Note 5 and Note 6);

• Commitments for future lease payments to the Department of Finance (Note 29);

• Insurance payments to RiskCover fund during the year 30 June 2017 was $0.2 million  
(Note 5 and Note 6);

• Grants provided to Hospital, Sports, and Arts (Note 7);

• Grants from State Government (Note 2(u) and Note 8); and

• Remuneration for services provided by the Auditor General (Note 22).

Material transactions with other related parties

• superannuation payment to GESB during the year 30 June 2017 was $3.58 million  
(Note 5 and Note 6).

Outside of general citizen type transactions, there were no material related party transactions 
with Key Management Personnel or their close family members or their controlled or jointly 
controlled entities for the year ended to 30 June 2017.



25. Financial Instruments
(a) Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

Financial instruments held by Lotterywest are cash and cash equivalents, term deposits, floating 
rate notes, floating rate deposits, receivables and payables. Lotterywest has limited exposure to 
financial risks. Lotterywest’s investment portfolio is managed by the Western Australia Treasury 
Corporation within the constraints of the investment policy and the approved service level 
agreement. The Treasury Investment Policy includes strategies on managing the risks identified 
below. 

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises where there is a possibility that counterparties will default on interest payments 
or capital repayments resulting in financial losses to Lotterywest.

In measuring risk at a counterparty level there are three components which include the 
probability of default by the counterparty (a), the current exposure to the counterparty (b), and the 
likely recovery ratio on defaulted obligations (c).

(a) Probability of default: Lotterywest will only deal with counterparties that have a minimum 
credit rating issued by Standard & Poor’s of A - long term and Moody’s of A3 long term, which 
is above investment grade (BBB). 

(b) Current exposure to counterparties: Lotterywest deals mainly with major financial institutions. 
The average exposure to these counterparties was $327.46 million (2016: $322.10 million). 
The maximum exposure to each counterparty is determined by their credit rating. The higher 
the credit rating the greater the maximum exposure, subject to upper limits counterparty’s 
and aggregate class limits. 

(c) Likely recovery ratio on defaulted obligations: Lotterywest does not trade securities, nor 
are there any investments in securities which have embedded derivatives. Consequently 
Lotterywest does not have exposure to market movements in relation to capital repayment. 
Given the high credit quality of investments, the risk of default in relation to interest or capital 
is very low.
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With respect to receivables, customers cannot pay for Lotterywest products on credit. Lotterywest 
collects these monies electronically from its retail network on a weekly basis and monitors the 
performance of retail outlets. All new retail outlets are requested to provide a bank guarantee 
equivalent to one week’s takings. Consequently there is no material default risk for receivables. 
There were no bank guarantees called upon during this financial year.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk arises when Lotterywest is unable to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. 
Lotterywest is exposed to liquidity risk through its trading in the normal course of its business. 
Lotterywest manages liquidity risk by limiting investment terms to have sufficient funds available 
to meet forecasted payment outcomes as and when they fall due.

Market Risk

Lotterywest does not trade in foreign currency and is not materially exposed to other price 
risks. Lotterywest’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates to the whole 
investment portfolio and changes in interest rates which impact on investment income. The 
current outlook for interest rates is considered unfavourable. Lotterywest has no borrowings. 

The primary objective of Lotterywest’s investment portfolio is capital preservation whilst 
generating an appropriate return. Investment in high quality products where all investments are 
held to maturity and all counterparties are investment grade provides low risk of capital loss. 
The current investment portfolio only contains term deposits, floating rate notes and floating rate 
deposits. 

(b) Categories of Financial Instruments

The carrying amount of each of the following categories of financial assets and financial liabilities 
at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2017
$000

2016
$000

Financial Assets

Cash 21,799 36,917 

Loan and Receivables(a) 5,833 8,858 

Other Financial Assets Held-to-Maturity 223,189 227,463 

Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost 182,803 188,066 
(a)  The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office  

(statutory receivable).

(c) Financial Instrument Disclosures

Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk and Interest Rate Risk Exposure

The following table details the exposure to liquidity risk and interest rate risk as at the end of 
the reporting period. Lotterywest`s maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting 
period is the carrying amount of the financial assets as shown on the following table. The table 
is based on information provided from Western Australian Treasury Corporation (WATC) to 
Lotterywest.

The contractual maturity amounts in the table are representative of the undiscounted principal 
and interest receivable or payable amounts. 

Lotterywest holds bank guarantees as collateral for its retailer debtors. 

There are no financial assets that are past due and therefore there is no further ageing analysis 
for the financial assets.

Lotterywest does not hold any financial assets that had to have their terms renegotiated that 
would have otherwise resulted in them being past due or impaired.



Maturity Analysis of Financial Assets

Interest Rate Exposure Maturity Dates

2017

Carrying 
Amount

$000

Weighted  
Average  

Interest Rate
%

Fixed 
Interest  

Rate
$000

Variable 
Interest  

Rate
$000

Non- 
Interest 
Bearing

$000

Nominal 
Amount

$000

Within 1  
Year

$000

1-3  
Years

$000

3-4  
Years

$000

4-5  
Years

$000

More than 
5 Years

$000

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 21,799 1.56% – 21,799 – 21,799 21,798 – – – –

Loan and Receivables 5,833  – – – 5,833 5,833 5,833 – – – –

Other Financial Assets  
Held-to-Maturity

223,189 2.74% 50,889 172,300 – 223,776 48,143 131,794 28,883 14,956 –

250,821 50,889 194,099 5,833 251,408 75,774 131,794 28,883 14,956 –

Interest Rate Exposure Maturity Dates

2016

Carrying 
Amount

$000

Weighted  
Average  

Interest Rate
%

Fixed 
Interest  

Rate
$000

Variable 
Interest  

Rate
$000

Non- 
Interest 
Bearing

$000

Nominal 
Amount

$000

Within 1  
year

$000

2-3  
Years

$000

3-4  
Years

$000

4-5  
Years

$000

More than 
5 Years

$000

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 36,917 1.87%  – 36,917 – 36,917 36,880  –  –  –  –

Loan and Receivables 8,858  –  – – 8,858 8,858 8,858  –  –  –  –

Other Financial Assets  
Held-to-Maturity

227,463 3.02% 55,163 172,300 – 227,847 45,117 69,197 84,650 28,883 –

273,238 55,163 209,217 8,858 273,622 90,855 69,197 84,650 28,883 –
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Maturity Analysis of Financial Liabilities

Interest Rate Exposure Maturity Dates

2017

Carrying 
Amount

$000

Weighted  
Average  

Interest Rate
%

Fixed  
Interest  

Rate
$000

Variable  
Interest  

Rate
$000

Non- 
Interest  
Bearing

$000

Total  
Nominal 
Amount

$000

Up to 3  
Months

$000

3-12  
Months

$000

2-20 
Years

$000

Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities Measured at 
Amortised Cost

182,803 – – – 182,803 182,803 163,673 1,910 17,220 

182,803 182,803 182,803 163,673 1,910 17,220 

Interest Rate Exposure Maturity Dates

2016

Carrying 
Amount

$000

Weighted  
Average  

Interest Rate
%

Fixed  
Interest  

Rate
$000

Variable  
Interest  

Rate
$000

Non- 
Interest  
Bearing

$000

Total  
Nominal 
Amount

$000

Up to 3  
Months

$000

3-12  
Months

$000

2-20  
Years

$000

Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities Measured at 
Amortised Cost

188,066 – – – 188,066 188,066 173,752 744 13,570 

188,066 – – – 188,066 188,066 173,752 744 13,570 



Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The following table summarises the interest rate sensitivity of Lotterywest’s financial assets and 
liabilities at the end of the reporting period. It assumes that any change in interest rates if held 
constant throughout the reporting period. The sensitivity analysis provided is a movement -0.5% 
and 0.5% (2016: -0.5% and 0.5%).

As at 30 June 2017 the cash rate was 1.5% (2016: 1.75%)

2017  

Carrying
Amount

$000

-0.5% 
Change

(Loss)
$000

+0.5% 
Change

Profit
$000

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 21,799 (109) 109 

Other Financial Assets Held-to-Maturity 223,189 (1,116) 1,116 

Loan and Receivables 5,833 – –

Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities Measured at Amortised Costs 182,803 – –

Total Increase/(Decrease) (1,225) 1,225 

2016  

Carrying
Amount

$000

-0.5% 
Change

(Loss)
$000

+0.5% 
Change

Profit
$000

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 36,917 (185) 185 

Other Financial Assets Held-to-Maturity 227,463 (1,137) 1,137 

Loan and Receivables 8,858 – –

Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost 188,066 – –

Total Increase/(Decrease) (1,322) 1,322 

Fair Value

All financial assets and liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position, whether they are carried 
at cost or fair value, are recognised at amounts that represent a reasonable approximation of 
fair value unless otherwise stated in the specific notes.

28. Related and Affiliated Bodies 
Section 26 (1) of the Act requires details of all grant recipients to be listed separately, including 
grants provided to any affiliated bodies. There were no related and/or affiliated bodies requiring 
disclosure for the year. A full list of approved grants is disclosed in the Annual Report.

29. Commitments for Expenditure
The commitments below are inclusive of GST where relevant.

Capital Expenditure Commitments

Capital expenditure commitments in relation to information technology capital purchases 
contracted at the reporting date but not recognised in the financial statements as liabilities are 
payable as follows:

2017
$000

2016
$000

Within 1 year 3,717 4,097 

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years  –  –

3,717 4,097 

Other Expenditure Commitments

Other expenditure commitments in relation to information technology maintenance, support 
and various inventory items contracted at the reporting date but not recognised in the financial 
statements as liabilities are payable as follows:

2017
$000

2016
$000

Within 1 year 3,265 3,393 

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 8,473 9,559 

11,738 12,952 

Lease Commitments 

Commitments in relation to leases contracted at the reporting date but not recognised in the 
financial statements as liabilities are payable as follows:

26. Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabilities
At the date of this report, Lotterywest is not aware of any contingent assets or contingent liabilities.

27. Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service
Lotterywest has two services. 
Service 1 – Sale of lottery products to the public of Western Australia; and
Service 2 – The provision of grants and other distributions to the community of Western Australia.

Service 1 Service 2

Sale of Lottery  
Products

Grants and Other 
Distributions Total

2017
$000

2016
$000

2017
$000

2016
$000

2017
$000

2016
$000

INCOME

Sales 827,395 889,487  –  – 827,395 889,487 

Interest Income 8,358 9,514  –  – 8,358 9,514 

Other Revenue 16,426 14,204  –  – 16,426 14,204 

Total Income 852,179 913,205  –  – 852,179 913,205 

EXPENSES

Cost of Sales 564,303 606,615  –  – 564,303 603,564 

Lotteries Operations 61,162 49,296  –  – 61,162 52,347 

Grants and Community 
Development Operations

–  – 12,255 16,096 12,255 16,096 

Total Expenses excluding 
Returns to Beneficiaries

625,465 655,911 12,255 16,096 637,720 672,007 

Profit/(Loss) before  
Returns to Beneficiaries

226,714 257,294 (12,255) (16,096) 214,459 241,198 

Grants from State Government 33,009 35,468  –  – 33,009 35,468 

Grants Transfer (259,723) (292,762) 259,723 292,762 –  –

Amount Available for Distribution –  – 247,468 276,666 247,468 276,666 

Total Returns to Beneficiaries  –  – 261,153 277,551 261,153 277,551 

Loss for the period  –  – (13,685) (885) (13,685) (885)
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2017
$000

2016
$000

Non-Cancellable Property Lease Commitments(a)

Within 1 year 1,709 1,474 

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 7,135 6,473 

Later than 5 years 12,634 11,597 

21,478 19,544

Non-Cancellable Operating Lease Commitments(b)

Within 1 year 86 106 

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 59 56 

145 162

Total Lease Commitments 21,623 19,706 
(a)  The property leases are non-cancellable and have terms ranging from 1 year to 12 years, with rent 

payable monthly in advance. Depending on the terms and conditions of the lease concerned, rent review 
provisions exist which generally result in rental increases throughout the lease term. Options exist in most 
leases which permit leases to be extended under the prevailing lease terms and conditions, resulting in 
leases being extended beyond their original lease term.

 Total lease rental recognised as Other Expenses during the year 30 June 2017 was $1.06 million.

(b)  These amounts were provided by the Department of Finance and relate to Lotterywest’s motor vehicle 
lease arrangements which operate under the State Fleet Funding Facility contract. Lotterywest’s vehicle 
leases are generally for two or three years. 

30.  Events Occurring after the End of the Reporting Period
There has been no event subsequent to the end of the reporting period which would have a 
material effect on Lotterywest’s financial statements at 30 June 2017.
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31. Supplementary financial information
(a) Write-Offs

2017
$000

2016
$000

Play Online transactions written-off by the Lotteries Commissions 
during the period

119 –

Portable attractive assets 4

123

32. Explanatory Statement
The following tables provide details of significant variations between actual revenues and 
expenditures for the financial year compared with the corresponding items for the preceding 
year and the corresponding items in the budget.

Significant variations are considered to be those where the amount is deemed as being in excess 
of 5% and $1.3 million.

Significant Variations 
Between Actual and Estimates (Original Budget) of Revenues and Expenditures for 2016/17

2017 Actual 
$000

2017 Budget 
$000

Variance 
$000

REVENUE
Sales 827,395 922,000 (94,605) (a)

Less: Cost of Sales
Prizes 465,936 516,436 (50,500)
Printing Costs 2,866 4,110 (1,244)
Retailers’ Commission 62,492 73,469 (10,977)
Goods and Services Tax 33,009 38,000 (4,991)
Total Cost of Sales 564,303 632,015 (67,712) (b)

Trading Profit 263,092 289,985 (26,893)

OTHER REVENUE
Interest 8,358 8,500 (142)
Other 16,426 13,785 2,641 (c)
Total Other Revenue 24,784 22,285 2,499 

EXPENSES
Lotteries Operations 61,162 56,893 4,269 
Grants and Community Development 
Operations

12,255 18,964 (6,709)

Total Expenses 73,417 75,857 (2,440) (d)
Profit from Lottery Activities 214,459 236,413 (21,954)

Total Returns to Beneficiaries
Direct Grants (Net of Grants not taken up) 109,987 117,000 (7,013)
State Pool Account 120,934 135,718 (14,784)
Sport/Arts Lotteries Accounts 30,232 33,930 (3,698)
Total Returns to Beneficiaries 261,153 286,648 (25,495) (e)

GST Reimbursement for Gambling Margin 33,009 38,000 (4,991) (f)

Net Profit/(Loss) (13,685) (12,235) (1,450)

(a) Sales

Lotterywest’s sales revenue for the 2016/17 financial year was $94.6 million (10%) lower than the 
budget. This result was mainly driven by lower levels of jackpot activity as well as a downturn in 
economic conditions. 

(b) Cost of Sales

Prize allocation, printing, commissions, and Goods and Services Tax are lower as they are 
directly linked to the reduced sales. This was also a higher proportion of online sales for which 
commission is not payable.

(c) Other Revenue

Other Revenue for 2016/17 is above budget due to increased Forfeited Prizes arising from  
Scratch‘n’Win and a forfeited Saturday Division 1 Prize.

(d) Total Expenses from Lottery Activities

Total expenses for the 2016/17 financial year were below budget due to Retail Transformation 
Program delays, as well as underspend in depreciation arising from project and capital work 
delays, which resulted in lower depreciation.

(e) Total Returns to Beneficiaries

Statutory funding to State Pool Account, Sports and the Arts is distributed according to section  
22 of the Act and is directly linked to the level of sales recorded. The Direct Grants are distributed 
according to sections 19 and 24 of the Act. As a result of lower sales, Direct Grants were (6%) 
lower than budget, being a reduction of the program to a sustainable level, whilst continuing to 
reduce accummulated reserve levels.

(f) GST Reimbursement for Gambling Margin

GST Reimbursement for Gambling Margin is reimbursed based on the Gambling Margin, which 
is directly linked to sales. The 10% decrease in sales to budget resulted in a proportionate 
decrease in GST Reimbursement for Gambling Margin.

Significant Variations 
Actual Revenues and Expenditures for 2016/17 and 2015/16

2017 
Actual 
$000

2016 
Actual 
$000

Variance 
$000

REVENUE
Sales 827,395 889,487 (62,092) (a)

Less: Cost of Sales
Prizes 465,936 500,133 (34,197)
Printing Costs 2,866 3,051 (185)
Retailers’ Commission 62,492 67,963 (5,471)
Goods and Services Tax 33,009 35,468 (2,459)
Total Cost of Sales 564,303 606,615 (42,312) (b)

Trading Profit 263,092 282,872 (19,780)

OTHER REVENUE
Interest 8,358 9,514 (1,156)
Forfeited Prizes 11,635 8,915 2,720 (c)
Retailer Fees 4,447 4,594 (147)
Player Registration Service Fee 64 95 (31)
Other 280 600 (320)
Total Other Revenue from Lottery Activities 24,784 23,718 1,066 

EXPENSES
Lotteries Operations 61,162 49,296 11,866 
Grants and Community Development 
Operations

12,255 16,096 (3,841)

Total Expenses from Lottery Activities 73,417 65,392 8,025 (d)
Profit from Lottery Activities 214,459 241,198 (26,739)

Total Returns to Beneficiaries
Direct Grants (Net of Grants not taken up) 109,987 114,983 (4,996)
State Pool Account 120,934 130,054 (9,120)
Sport/Arts Lotteries Accounts 30,232 32,514 (2,282)
Total Returns to Beneficiaries 261,153 277,551 (16,398) (e)

GST Reimbursement for Gambling Margin 33,009 35,468 (2,459) (f)
Net Loss (13,685) (885) (12,800)
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(a) Sales

Lotterywest’s sales revenue for the 2016/17 financial year was $62.1 million (7%) lower than last year. 
The lower levels of jackpot activity for OZ Lotto and Powerball, and the reduction in Saturday Lotto 
sales this financial year were the main contributing factors to this year’s unfavourable variance. 

(b) Cost of Sales

Prize allocation, printing costs, and commission paid to retailers for selling lottery products 
are directly linked to sales. The 7% decrease in sales over the previous year resulted in a 
proportionate decrease in prizes and retailers’ commission. The increase in Play Online sales 
contributed to the adverse effect of the amount paid to retailers in the form of commission.

(c) Forfeited Prizes

Under the Lotteries Commission Act 1990 (as amended), players have 12 months to claim a 
lottery prize. If the prize is not claimed within that period, the prize is forfeited. Forfeited prizes 
are included in the pool of funds that become available for distribution to the Western Australian 
community through Lotterywest’s direct grants program. The forfeited prizes amount in the 
2016/17 financial year totalled to $11.6 million, an increase of $2.7 million.

(d) Total Expenses from Lottery Activities

Operational expenses for the 2016/17 financial year increased in comparison to last year and 
is attributable to increases in advertising expenses across TV, radio and digital media, salary 
and wage expenses, accommodation, IT systems and an increase in professional and property 
contracts.

(e) Total Returns to Beneficiaries

Statutory funding to State Pool Account, Sports and the Arts is distributed according to section 22 of 
the Act and is directly linked to the level of sales recorded. The 7% decrease in sales in the 2016/17 
financial year resulted in a total of $261.2 million in Returns to Beneficiaries.

Direct Grants are distributed according to sections 19 and 24 of the Act. As a result of lower sales, 
Direct Grants were (4%) lower than previous year, being a reduction of the program to a sustainable 
level and to preserve prudent cash reserves.

(f) GST Reimbursement for Gambling Margin

GST Reimbursement for Gambling Margin is reimbursed based on the Gambling Margin, 
which is directly linked to sales. The 7% decrease in sales over the previous year resulted in a 
proportionate decrease in GST Reimbursement for Gambling Margin.

Operating Budget

In accordance with the Treasurer’s Instruction 953, this statement shows the 2017/18 Budget 
estimate for the Statement of Comprehensive Income. This statement is not subject to audit. 

2018 Budget 
$000

2017 Actual 
$000

Variance 
$000

REVENUE
Sales 904,000 827,395 76,605 

Less: Cost of Sales
Prizes 509,696 465,936 43,760 
Printing Costs 4,202 2,866 1,336 
Retailers’ Commission 68,278 62,492 5,786 
Goods and Services Tax 36,585 33,009 3,576 
Total Cost of Sales 618,761 564,303 54,458 

Trading Profit 285,239 263,092 22,147 

OTHER REVENUE
Interest 7,750 8,358 (608)
Forfeited Prizes 8,500 11,635 (3,135)
Retailer Fees 4,859 4,447 412 
Player Registration Service Fee – 64 (64)
Other 135 280 (145)
Total Revenues from Lottery Activities 21,244 24,784 (3,540)

EXPENSES
Lotteries Operations 64,439 61,162 3,277 
Grants and Community Development 
Operations

12,909 12,255 654 

Total Expenses from Lottery Activities 77,348 73,417 3,931 
Profit from Lottery Activities 229,135 214,459 14,676 

Total Returns to Beneficiaries
Direct Grants (Net of Grants not taken up) 110,000 109,987 13 
State Pool Account 133,079 120,934 12,145 
Sport/Arts Lotteries Accounts 33,268 30,232 3,036 
Total Returns to Beneficiaries 276,347 261,153 15,194 

GST Reimbursement for Gambling Margin 36,585 33,009 3,576 
Net Loss (10,627) (13,685) 3,058 

NOTES TO THE BUDGET

Lotterywest’s budget for the fiscal year 2017/18 meets the operational and financial objectives for the 
year as well as long term outcomes and strategies documented in the Strategic Development Plan. 

(a) The sales budget of $904 million represents an increase of 9.3% on actual sales from 2016/17. 

(b) Lotterywest’s operational expense budget of $77.3 million represents an increase of 
$4.3 million (5.9%) from 2016/17 actual expenses. The increases in costs are as follows:

• Increase in accommodation costs of $0.1 million

• Increase in depreciation of $2.9 million for new assets

• Increase in advertising of $0.6 million

• Increase in retail distribution of $0.2 million

• Increase in service and contracts of $0.5 million.

(c) The community funding budget for 2017/18 totals $276.3 million and includes funding to 
Hospitals of $133.1 million, $16.6 million each to Sport and Arts and direct grants $110.0 million. 
In total, funding to the community represents 30.6% of gross sales. 

(d) Lotterywest has planned for an operating deficit of $10.6 million in 2017/18.
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Grants approved to  
the WA community

 Grant Customer  Amount Granted 

 10th Light Horse - Esperance Troop  $10,609  

 2J 2Air Live Radio Inc.  $12,993  

 360 Health and Community Limited  $96,545  

 360 Health and Community Limited  $33,000  

 68th Australian Intervarsity Choral Festival Perth 2017 Inc  $7,000  

 ABC Foundation Ltd.  $10,469  

 Aboriginal Alcohol and Drug Service (A.A.D.S.) (Inc)  $1,339,546  

 Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Veterans and Services Association of Western Australia (Inc)  $5,289  

 Access to Leisure and Sport Inc  $73,339  

 Advocacy South West (Inc)  $42,500  

 Afghan - Australia Cultural Council Inc.  $3,799  

 Aged & Community Services Western Australia Incorporated  $20,000  

 Agencies for South West Accommodation Inc.  $60,000  

 Albany Hospice Inc.  $12,000  

 Albany Light Opera and Theatre Company (Inc)  $15,000  

 Albany Mountain Bike Club Inc  $10,000  

 Albany Mountain Bike Club Inc  $15,000  

 Albany Secondary Education Support Centre Bush Rangers WA Cadet Unit  $8,790  

 Albany Summer School (Inc)  $9,500  

 Alinjarra Primary School River Rangers  $3,674  

 Alternative Technology Association Inc.  $8,680  

 Amity Health Limited  $9,600  

 Anglicare WA Inc  $220,000  

 Anglicare WA Inc - Albany Womens Centre  $155,088  

 Aperture Group Inc.  $8,818  

 Army Museum of Western Australia Foundation  $21,760  

 Arthritis Foundation of WA Incorporated  $17,659  

 Arts and Culture Goldfields Association Inc  $16,163  

 Arts and Culture Goldfields Association Inc  $184,685  

 Arts Margaret River Incorporated  $70,500  

 Grant Customer  Amount Granted 

 Arts Margaret River Incorporated  $26,840  

 Ashdale Special Families Inc  $2,857  

 Association of Red Hatted Groups of Australia Inc  $2,494  

 Association of the Liberian Community of Australia in Western Australia (ALCA-WA) Incorporated  $15,000  

 Augusta River Festival (Inc)  $15,000  

 Aussie Hands Foundation Inc.  $3,658  

 Australia Day Council of Western Australia Inc.  $30,000  

 Australia Day Council of Western Australia Inc.  $123,160  

 Australian Arab Association Incorporated  $10,000  

 Australian Army Cadets Association (W.A) Inc  $105,864  

 Australian Breastfeeding Association - WA Branch  $25,351  

 Australian Childhood Foundation  $42,609  

 Australian Family Association - WA Branch  $8,943  

 Australian Medical Association (WA) Inc acting as Trustee for AMA (WA) Foundation  $18,600  

 Australian Railway Historical Society (WA Division)  $1,105,176  

 Australian Rural Leadership Foundation Limited  $13,500  

 Australian-Asian Association of Western Australia (Incorporated)  $23,000  

 Australind Family History Society Incorporated  $5,000  

 Australind Senior High School Emergency Services Cadet Unit  $14,962  

 Autism West Support Incorporated  $19,850  

 Avon and Hills Carriage Driving Club (Inc)  $15,000  

 Avon Community Employment Support Centre  $113,635  

 Avon Youth Community and Family Services Incorporated  $17,000  

 AWESOME Arts Australia Ltd  $1,019,000  

 B4BA Limited  $36,768  

 Badminton Association of Western Australia  $15,568  

 Baldivis Primary School Parents and Citizens’ Association Incorporated  $15,000  

 Bangali Society for Puja and Culture Inc.  $5,000  

 Bangladesh Australia Association of Western Australia Incorporated  $15,000  

 Barking Gecko Theatre Company Ltd.  $8,578  

 Grant Customer  Amount Granted 

 Bayswater Community Men’s Shed Inc  $25,621  

 Be The Church  $4,607  

 Bedfordale Bandicoots Playgroup  $1,047  

 Befriend Inc  $64,042  

 Bengali Association of Western Australia Incorporated  $4,480  

 Bibbulmun Track Foundation (Inc)  $15,474  

 Bindoon and Districts Agricultural Society Inc  $15,000  

 Black Dog Ride Australia Limited  $20,122  

 Black Swan State Theatre Company Ltd  $190,066  

 Bladder and Bowel Health Australia Inc.  $16,180  

 Bloodwood Tree Association Incorporated  $20,000  

 Blues at Bridgetown Incorporated  $20,000  

 Boab Festival at Derby  $25,686  

 Boddington Community Resource Centre Inc  $10,000  

 Boer War Memorial Society of WA Inc  $7,987  

 Borderless Gandhi Ltd  $20,000  

 Boulder Promotion and Development Association Incorporated  $5,912  

 Bridge Inc  $49,809  

 Bridgetown Family and Community Centre Incorporated  $168,680  

 Bridgetown High School Emergency Services Cadets  $14,953  

 Bridgetown Primary School Parents And Citizens’ Association Incorporated  $1,090  

 Bridgetown Repertory Club (Inc)  $15,000  

 Bringing Them Home Committee (WA) Incorporated  $18,865  

 Bringing Them Home Committee (WA) Incorporated  $241,620  

 Brookhampton Progress Association Incorporated  $6,055  

 Broome Aboriginal Media Association (Aboriginal Corporation)  $48,270  

 Broome Community Information Resource Centre and Learning Exchange  $5,590  

 Broome Lotteries House Incorporated  $17,020  

 Broome Out Of School Care Children’s Activities Incorporated  $49,032  

 Broome Senior High School Bush Rangers Cadets  $15,000  

 Broome Surf Life Saving Club Incorporated  $1,500,000  

 Broome Volunteer Sea Rescue Group (Inc.)  $128,062  

 Bruce Rock Community Resource Centre (Inc)  $4,991  

 Buckingham Heritage Group (Inc.)  $15,000  

 Buddha’s Light International Association Western Australia Incorporated  $5,000  

 Bunbury Bushwalking Club Incorporated  $4,618  

 Bunbury Community Radio Inc  $14,500  

 Bunbury Housing Association (Inc)  $180,000  

 Bunbury Lotteries House Complex Inc  $200,195  

 Bunbury Multicultural Group Incorporated  $18,000  

 Bunbury Regional Theatre Incorporated  $100,000  

 Grant Customer  Amount Granted 

 Bunbury Studio Potters Incorporated  $12,410  

 Bunbury Women’s Club  $26,953  

 Bush Heritage Australia  $490,000  

 Busselton Allsports Inc  $20,000  

 Busselton Choral Society  $5,889  

 Busselton Jetty Environment & Conservation Association Incorporated  $45,078  

 Busselton Oral History Group (Inc)  $1,861  

 Byford Community Kindergarten Association Inc  $5,200  

 Cambodian Buddhist Society of Western Australia Inc  $4,925  

 Canning Agricultural Horticultural and Recreational Society (Inc.)  $20,000  

 Carers Association of Western Australia Incorporated  $30,000  

 Carey Community Baptist Church Inc.  $9,676  

 Carnarvon Family Support Service Incorporated  $25,000  

 Carnarvon Festival Inc  $15,000  

 Carnarvon Medical Service Aboriginal Corporation  $375,432  

 Carnarvon Roadwise Committee  $6,925  

 Carnarvon Space and Technology Museum Inc  $15,000  

 Casa Mia Montessori Playgroup Inc  $9,303  

 Catholic Education Commission of Western Australia Trustees - Holy Rosary Outside School Hours Care  $10,000  

 Cecil Andrews Armadale Police Rangers  $12,422  

 Celebrate Western Australia (Inc)  $1,756,438  

 Centacare Kimberley Association Inc  $60,500  

 Central Agcare Incorporated  $10,000  

 Centre for Asylum Seekers, Refugees and Detainees Inc  $25,000  

 Centre for Asylum Seekers, Refugees and Detainees Inc  $11,400  

 Centrepoint Church Incorporated  $20,000  

 Cerebral Palsy Association of Western Australia Ltd  $1,011,230  

 Cervantes Historical Society Inc  $4,315  

 Cervantes Ratepayers and Progress Association  $12,361  

 Chapman Valley Historical Society (Inc)  $14,040  

 Chidlow Progress Association Incorporated  $15,000  

 Child Inclusive Learning and Development Australia Inc  $76,320  

 Children’s Hospital Child Care Centre Association  $377,807  

 Chung Wah Association  $20,000  

 Church of Christ Kalgoorlie  $3,150  

 Churchlands Senior High School Surf Life Saving Cadets  $10,909  

 CircuitWest Incorporated  $6,305  

 City of Albany  $35,000  

 City of Albany  $1,600,000  

 City of Armadale  $35,000  

 City of Armadale  $1,000,000  

Date range: 01.07.2016 - 30.06.2017
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 Grant Customer  Amount Granted 

 City of Armadale  $4,060,000  

 City of Bayswater  $70,000  

 City of Bayswater  $20,000  

 City of Belmont  $20,000  

 City of Bunbury  $30,000  

 City of Bunbury  $599,825  

 City of Bunbury Surf Life Saving Club (Incorporated)  $198,191  

 City of Busselton  $50,000  

 City of Canning  $20,000  

 City of Fremantle  $45,550  

 City of Fremantle  $12,000  

 City of Gosnells  $20,000  

 City of Greater Geraldton  $20,000  

 City of Greater Geraldton  $65,000  

City of Greater Geraldton - Queens Park Theatre $85,500 

 City of Joondalup  $90,000  

 City of Kalgoorlie-Boulder  $20,000  

 City of Kalgoorlie-Boulder - Goldfields Arts Centre  $83,500  

 City of Karratha  $1,500,000  

 City of Mandurah  $10,000  

 City of Melville  $11,000  

 City of Melville  $710,000  

 City of Melville Citizens Relief Fund  $15,000  

 City of Nedlands  $20,000  

 City of Nedlands  $28,190  

 City of Perth  $500,000  

 City of Rockingham  $20,000  

 City of Rockingham  $450,000  

 City of Rockingham  $900,000  

 City of South Perth  $20,000  

 City of South Perth  $300,000  

 City of Stirling  $20,000  

 City of Stirling  $1,475,534  

 Grant Customer  Amount Granted 

 City of Stirling  $2,349,370  

 City of Stirling - Stirling Women’s Centre  $20,000  

 City of Subiaco  $48,015  

 City of Subiaco  $20,775  

 City of Swan  $20,000  

 City of Swan  $20,000  

 City of Wanneroo  $30,000  

 City of Wanneroo  $750,000  

 CLAN WA (Community Link and Network) Incorporated  $127,290  

 Claremont Football Club  $32,000  

 Cockburn Community and Cultural Council  $10,000  

 Cockburn Wetlands Education Centre Incorporated  $102,665  

 College Community Child Care Centre Inc  $31,398  

 Collie Gallery Group Inc  $30,788  

 Collier Park Village Residents Committee  $9,000  

 Combined Probus Club of Albany Inc  $1,353  

 Communicare (Inc.)  $1,295,157  

 Community Employers WA  $4,910  

 Community Legal Centres Association (Western Australia) Incorporated  $311,393  

 Community Legal Centres Association (Western Australia) Incorporated  $80,148  

 Community Legal Centres Association (Western Australia) Incorporated  $77,100  

 Community Living Association Inc  $6,382  

 Community Vision Incorporated  $2,363  

 Community Vision Incorporated  $5,080  

 Communitywest Incorporated  $35,000  

 Como Primary School Parents and Citizens’ Association Incorporated  $10,000  

 ConnectGroups - Support Groups Association WA Inc  $71,205  

 Consular Corps of Western Australia Inc  $20,000  

 Consumers of Mental Health WA (Inc).  $70,050  

 Coolgardie Day Celebrations Inc  $15,000  

 Corrigin Toy Library  $1,657  

 Council on the Ageing (Western Australia) Incorporated  $40,000  

 Country Arts (WA) Inc  $11,704  

 Grant Customer  Amount Granted 

 Country Arts (WA) Inc  $295,000  

 Country Arts (WA) Inc  $105,000  

 Country Music Club of Boyup Brook, WA Incorporated  $20,000  

 Cranbrook Tourist and Business Promotion Group  $6,717  

 Create Foundation Limited  $15,823  

 Crossways Community Services Inc  $37,406  

 Crossways Community Services Inc  $70,000  

 Cunderdin Community Resource Centre Inc  $16,900  

 Cystic Fibrosis Western Australia (Inc)  $35,700  

 Cystic Fibrosis Western Australia (Inc)  $5,455  

 Cystic Fibrosis Western Australia (Inc)  $91,719  

 Dalwallinu Community Resource Centre Incorporated  $18,489  

 Dardanup Bull and Barrel Festival Incorporated  $14,853  

 Deafness Council Western Australia Incorporated  $32,032  

 Denmark Arts Council  $19,500  

 Denmark Arts Council  $50,000  

 Denmark Occasional Day Care Centre Inc  $22,960  

 Derbarl Yerrigan Health Service Incorporated  $100,000  

 Directions Disability Support Services Inc  $36,050  

 Disabled Children’s Foundation Inc  $23,709  

 Dismantle Inc  $54,190  

 Dogs’ Refuge Home (WA)  $127,320  

 Dongara Community Resource Centre Inc.  $10,350  

 Dongara Community Resource Centre Inc.  $1,482  

 Donnybrook Apple Festival Inc  $20,000  

 Donnybrook Arts and Crafts Group  $2,960  

 Donor Mate Australia Ltd.  $15,000  

 Donovan Village Independent Living Units Residents Committee  $5,920  

 Dowerin District High School Emergency Services Cadet Corps  $4,291  

 Dowerin District Museum  $10,000  

 Down Syndrome Association of Western Australia (Inc)  $26,640  

 Duke of Edinburgh’s Award in Australia (WA Division) Incorporated  $43,908  

 Dumbartung Aboriginal Corporation  $20,000  

 Dumbleyung Events Committee Inc  $9,980  

 Duncraig Senior High School Bush Rangers WA Cadets  $15,000  

 Dungeon Youth Centre Inc  $5,467  

 Dungeon Youth Centre Inc  $15,000  

 Dunsborough and Districts Progress Association Inc  $12,000  

 Dunsborough Greenfield Community Group Inc  $223,571  

 Ear Science Institute Australia Incorporated  $48,990  

 Earlybirds Playgroup Incorporated  $15,000  

 Grant Customer  Amount Granted 

 Earthwise Community Association Inc  $27,000  

 Eastern Metropolitan Regional Council  $20,000  

 Eastern Metropolitan Regional Council  $155,000  

 Eastern Region Domestic Violence Services Network Inc  $15,000  

 Edmund Rice Camps for Kids (WA) Incorporated  $18,579  

 Edmund Rice Centre, Mirrabooka Inc.  $12,290  

 El Shaddai Kwinana Christian Fellowship Inc  $18,000  

 ELBA Inc  $2,332  

 Emama Nguda Aboriginal Corporation  $59,756  

 Emmaus Community Incorporated  $51,121  

 Empowering People in Communities (EPIC) Inc  $17,130  

 Environment House Incorporated  $6,843  

 Epilepsy Association  $100,000  

 Esperance Care Services Inc  $10,000  

 Esperance Care Services Inc  $25,000  

 Esperance Community Arts (Inc)  $132,280  

 Esperance Lotteries House Association Inc.  $8,204  

 Esperance Mechanical Restoration Group Inc  $75,720  

 Esperance Senior High School - Bush Ranger Cadets  $6,203  

 Exmouth Community Support Group Inc.  $40,000  

 Fair Game Australia Limited  $25,310  

 Falcon Playgroup  $13,015  

 Family Inclusion Network of Western Australia Inc.  $14,302  

 Family Support WA Inc  $48,560  

 Fauna Rehabilitation Foundation  $20,047  

 Federation of Western Australian Police and Community Youth Centres (Inc)  $20,549  

 Federation of Western Australian Police and Community Youth Centres (Inc)  $136,773  

 Festival of Busselton Incorporated  $15,000  

 Festival of the Wind Incorporated  $20,000  

 Filipino-Australian Club of Perth Inc  $14,416  

 Fishers’ With Disabilities Association Incorporated  $6,591  

 Flamicare Australia Inc  $8,968  

 Floreat Toy Library Inc  $5,000  

 Foothills Information and Referral Service Incorporated  $30,000  

 Forest Lakes/Thornlie Family Centre Inc.  $18,457  

 FORM Building a State of Creativity Inc  $20,894  

 FORM Building a State of Creativity Inc  $190,000  

 Forrest Personnel Ltd  $1,072  

 Fremantle Foundation Ltd  $23,810  

 Fremantle Multicultural Centre Inc  $39,750  

 Fremantle Women’s Health Centre Inc  $25,350  
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 Fremantle Women’s Health Centre Inc  $5,473  

 Friends of Edenvale (Inc)  $2,930  

 Friends of Kings Park (Inc.)  $1,140,000  

 Friends of Kings Park (Inc.)  $100,000  

 Friends of Pingelly Railway Station Inc  $24,285  

 Friends of St Peter’s Church, Cemetery and Glebe, Gilgering Inc.  $81,422  

 Furqan Islamic Association of Western Australia Inc  $23,412  

 Future Living Trust Incorporated  $27,316  

 Gascoyne in May Inc  $46,011  

 Geraldton and Districts Senior Citizens Action Group  $5,930  

 Gillamii Centre (Inc)  $7,590  

 Girl Guides Western Australia Inc  $220,692  

 Givit Listed Ltd  $13,776  

 Golden Mile Loopline Railway Society Inc  $10,000  

 Goldfields Naturalists Club (Inc)  $3,998  

 Goldfields Rehabilitation Services Inc  $273,631  

 Goldfields Women’s Health Care Association Inc.  $41,570  

 Gondwana Link Ltd  $15,000  

 Gosnells Community Legal Centre (Inc)  $60,000  

 Gosnells Community Men’s Shed Inc.  $15,034  

 Gosnells Toy Library (Inc)  $9,956  

 GP Down South Limited  $1,870,000  

 Grace Care Inc  $5,000  

 Great Southern Employment Development Committee Incorporated  $28,000  

 Green Skills Inc  $1,950  

 Green Skills Inc  $20,000  

 Greenbushes Community Resource Centre Incorporated  $6,710  

 Greenbushes Community Shed  $15,000  

 Greenfields Family and Community Centre Inc  $48,355  

 Greenwood Toy Library Incorporated  $11,226  

 Habitat For Humanity Western Australia Inc  $2,000  

 Hampton Senior High School Bush Ranger Cadet Unit  $13,636  

 Handbells in Peel Inc  $5,744  

 Grant Customer  Amount Granted 

 Harvest Lakes Residents’ Association Incorporated  $8,523  

 Harvey Mainstreet (Inc.)  $20,000  

 Health Consumers Council (WA) Inc.  $25,200  

 Health Consumers Council (WA) Inc.  $215,405  

 HeartKids WA Inc. $28,400  

 Hedland Well Women’s Centre Incorporated  $15,000  

 Helping Out People Everywhere Incorporated  $25,000  

 Helping Out People Everywhere Incorporated  $30,000  

 Heritage Perth Inc  $40,000  

 Hindi Samaj Of Western Australia Incorporated  $7,800  

 Historical Society of Cockburn  $11,000  

 Home Away from Home Inc  $280,000  

 Honeywood Residents Group Inc  $6,000  

 IBN Corporation Pty Ltd  $912,300  

 ICEA Ltd  $15,000  

 ICEA Ltd  $56,665  

 In Town Centre Incorporated  $10,000  

 Independent Living Centre of Western Australia Inc.  $2,445,851  

 Independent Living Centre of Western Australia Inc.  $2,355,746  

 Indian Society of Western Australia  $20,000  

 Indigo Junction Incorporated  $35,000  

 Indigo Junction Incorporated  $5,000  

 Indigo Junction Incorporated  $35,000  

 Interchange Incorporated  $26,358  

 International Institution for Spiritual War Fare Ministries (Olangi Wosho Branch) Inc  $15,000  

 Iranian Association Inc - Iranian Community of Western Australia  $8,430  

 Ishar Multicultural Women’s Health Centre Inc.  $11,950  

 Ishar Multicultural Women’s Health Centre Inc.  $60,000  

 Italo-Australian Welfare & Cultural Centre Inc  $20,000  

 Japan Festival Association in Perth Inc  $15,000  

 Jazz by the Bay Association Incorporated  $10,000  

 JDRF Australia  $3,532  

 Jewish Care WA (Inc)  $19,000  

 Grant Customer  Amount Granted 

 Jigsaw Search and Contact Inc  $21,209  

 Jobs South West Inc  $36,830  

 John Forrest Secondary College Bush Rangers  $10,011  

 Joondalup Christmas Lunch  $14,495  

 Joongari House/Wyndham Family Support Incorporated  $5,500  

 Juluwarlu Group Aboriginal Corporation  $369,681  

 Jurien Bay Community Men’s Shed Inc  $7,319  

 Jurien Bay Volunteer Marine Rescue Group Inc  $26,065  

 Kalamunda and Districts Agricultural Society Incorporated  $10,000  

 Kalamunda Districts Toy Library  $12,198  

 Kalamunda Men’s Shed Inc  $3,700  

 Kalbarri District High School Bushranger Cadets  $3,300  

 Kalbarri Volunteer Sea Search & Rescue Group Incorporated  $30,987  

 Kalgoorlie Central Playgroup (Inc)  $15,000  

 Kalgoorlie-Boulder Community Fair Society  $15,000  

 Kalyuku Ninti - Puntuku Ngurra Limited  $110,000  

 Karratha Emergency Relief Organisation Incorporated  $22,500  

 Katanning Agricultural Pastoral and Horticultural Society (Incorporated)  $10,000  

 Katanning Regional Business Association Incorporated  $15,972  

 Katanning Senior High School Bush Ranger Cadets  $15,000  

 Kelmscott-Pinjarra 10th Light Horse Memorial Troop Inc.  $22,128  

 Kerala Cultural Association of Western Australia Incorporated  $9,591  

 Kids’ Camps Inc.  $24,000  

 Kids’ Camps Inc.  $13,960  

 Kimberley Aboriginal Law and Culture Centre (Aboriginal Corporation)  $50,000  

 Kimberley Aboriginal Medical Services Limited  $30,000  

 Kimberley Aboriginal Medical Services Limited  $50,000  

 Kimberley Land Council Aboriginal Corporation  $158,282  

 Kimberley Stolen Generation Aboriginal Corporation  $15,000  

 Kingsley Community Carols Festival  $10,500  

 Kiwi Festival Promotions Inc  $4,000  

 Kojonup Historical Society Incorporated  $14,375  

 Kununurra Neighbourhood House Incorporated  $2,038,756  

 Kununurra Neighbourhood House Incorporated  $15,000  

 Kununurra Waringarri Aboriginal Corporation  $63,940  

 Lake Clifton Volunteer Bush Fire Brigade  $3,020  

 Leading Age Services Australia Limited  $20,000  

 Leading Youth Forward Incorporated  $49,838  

 Leederville Connect Inc  $20,000  

 Leeming Area Community Bands Inc  $12,190  

 Leeming Toy Library Incorporated  $4,778  

 Grant Customer  Amount Granted 

 Leeuwin Ocean Adventure Foundation Limited  $15,780  

 Lefroy Road Child Care Centre Incorporated  $58,000  

 Life City Church Perth Inc  $17,250  

 Life Plan Recreation and Leisure Association Incorporated  $96,563  

 Linkwest Incorporated  $201,289  

 Lionheart Camp for Kids Incorporated  $44,776  

 Lions Club of Katanning  $5,000  

 Lions Club of Manjimup  $4,000  

 Lions Club of Stirling  $5,542  

 Lishman Health Foundation Incorporated  $9,075  

 Living Proud Incorporated  $9,000  

 Lockridge Senior Citizens Association Incorporated  $114,265  

 Lockyer Action Network  $2,147  

 Loftus Community Centre Association Incorporated  $25,335  

 Lower Kalgan Progress Association Incorporated  $2,500  

 Lucy Saw Centre Association  $40,000  

 Macedonian Australian Community Organisation Inc  $153,203  

 Malayali Association of Perth Incorporated  $3,947  

 Mandurah Family History Society Incorporated  $4,500  

 Mandurah Performing Arts Incorporated  $30,000  

 Mandurah Volunteer Marine Rescue Group (Incorporated)  $6,130  

 Manjimup Cherry Harmony Festival Inc  $18,800  

 Manning Primary School River Rangers  $10,000  

 Margaret River and Districts Historical Society Incorporated  $4,000  

 Margaret River Busselton Tourism Association Inc  $34,020  

 Margaret River Community Resource Centre Incorporated  $8,000  

 Margaret River Toy Library Inc.  $15,000  

 Margaret River Volunteer Marine Rescue Group Inc.  $14,000  

 Marra Worra Worra Aboriginal Corporation  $45,152  

 Mature Adults Learning Association Incorporated  $4,539  

 Mayo Community Garden Inc  $15,000  

 McDougall Park Community Kindergarten Inc.  $24,468  

 Meerilinga Young Children’s Foundation Inc  $54,490  

 Melville Cares (Inc)  $241,608  

 Melville City Playgroup (Inc.)  $10,490  

 Men Of The Trees  $262,200  

 Men’s Health and Wellbeing WA Inc  $20,000  

 Men’s Outreach Service Inc.  $13,842  

 Meningitis Centre Australia Inc  $46,000  

 Mercy Health And Aged Care Inc.  $25,500  

 Merredin and Districts Childcare and Play School Association Inc  $3,130  
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 Metropolitan Migrant Resource Centre Inc.  $41,000  

 Mid West Community Living Association Inc  $1,142  

 Midland Information, Debt and Legal Advocacy Service Inc.  $3,065  

 Midland Information, Debt and Legal Advocacy Service Inc.  $30,000  

 Midway Community Care  $7,500  

 Midway Community Care  $9,464  

 Mill Art Group Inc.  $3,859  

 Mission Australia  $60,791  

 Morrissey Homestead Inc  $39,837  

 Mothers of Preschoolers (MOPS) Australia  $10,440  

 Mount Magnet District High School - Emergency Services Cadet Corps  $15,000  

 Mowanjum Aboriginal Corporation  $30,030  

 Mowanjum Artists Spirit Of The Wandjina Aboriginal Corporation  $20,000  

 Mt Hawthorn Business and Community Group Inc  $20,807  

 Mt Marshall & Districts Agricultural Society (Inc.)  $8,169  

 Muka Matters Inc.  $5,048  

 Mullaloo Community Kindergarten Inc  $20,197  

 Mullewa District Agricultural Society  $10,859  

 Multicultural Radio and Television Assn of WA Inc  $254,952  

 Multicultural Services Centre of Western Australia Incorporated  $179,800  

 Multicultural Services Centre of Western Australia Incorporated  $417,555  

 Multiple Sclerosis Society of Western Australia (Incorporated)  $126,587  

 Multiple Sclerosis Society of Western Australia (Incorporated)  $35,890  

 Multiple Sclerosis Society of Western Australia (Incorporated)  $90,592  

 Mundaring Sharing  $24,000  

 Murdoch University Child Care Association  $7,104  

 Murray House Resource Centre Incorporated  $11,757  

 Muscular Dystrophy Association of Western Australia (Incorporated)  $13,226  

 Muscular Dystrophy Association of Western Australia (Incorporated)  $29,637  

 Museums Australia Incorporated  $57,700  

 N Class Destroyers Association Western Australian Branch (Inc)  $9,000  

 NAIDOC Perth Incorporated  $30,000  

 Nannup Garden Village Inc  $20,000  

 Grant Customer  Amount Granted 

 Nannup Music Club Incorporated  $20,000  

 Napier Progress Association Inc.  $15,000  

 Narrogin Agriculture Society Incorporated  $15,000  

 Narrogin Agriculture Society Incorporated  $14,995  

 Narrogin Spring Festival Inc  $13,523  

 National Disability Services Limited - National Disability Services Western Australia  $26,195  

 National Disability Services Limited - National Disability Services Western Australia  $312,500  

 National Disability Services Limited - National Disability Services Western Australia  $35,057  

 National Disability Services Limited - National Disability Services Western Australia  $1,296,750  

 National Trust of Australia (WA)  $40,000  

 National Trust of Australia (WA)  $43,791  

 National Trust of Australia (WA)  $5,351  

 Nations Church Incorporated  $15,000  

 Nature Play WA Inc.  $24,000  

 Nature Play WA Inc.  $90,028  

 Naval Association of Australia, Rockingham City Sub-Section Inc  $15,000  

 Nepali Association of Western Australia (NAWA) Incorporated  $5,470  

 New Arts Inc  $10,000  

 New Life Welfare (WA) Incorporated  $35,000  

 New Life Welfare (WA) Incorporated  $35,000  

 Newman Day Care Centre Inc  $3,220  

 Newton Moore Senior High School Bush Rangers Cadets  $6,056  

 Ngadju Conservation  $14,567  

 Ngurra Kujungka (Inc)  $60,000  

 Nine Mile Aboriginal Corporation  $8,495  

 Ningaloo Whaleshark Festival Inc  $25,000  

 Nintirri Centre (Incorporated)  $10,283  

 North Balga Primary School Parents and Citizens’ Association Incorporated  $14,497  

 North Cottesloe Surf Life Saving Club  $40,000  

 North Midlands Project Incorporated  $18,319  

 North Perth Business and Community Association Inc.  $10,000  

 North Yunderup Community Association Inc  $15,000  

 Northam’s Avon Descent Association  $30,000  

 Grant Customer  Amount Granted 

 Northampton Creative Obsessions Incorporated  $15,000  

 Northampton Friends of the Railway Incorporated  $8,528  

 Northcliffe Family Centre Incorporated  $73,082  

 Northcliffe Visitor Centre Inc.  $14,601  

 Northern Corridor Radio Group Inc  $14,690  

 Nuhra Life Enrichment Centre Incorporated  $4,130  

 Nungarin Community Resource Centre Inc  $4,230  

 Nungarin Heritage Machinery and Army Museum Inc.  $52,062  

 Nyamba Buru Yawuru Ltd  $9,710  

 Nyikina Incorporated  $150,000  

 Ocean Ridge Senior Citizens Club (Inc)  $7,382  

 Old Fairbridgians’ Association  $3,000  

 One Achord Community Choir Inc.  $9,808  

 Orana House (Inc)  $12,000  

 Orange Sky Laundry Inc  $170,000  

 Ord Valley Events Inc  $20,000  

 Organisation of African Community of Western Australia Inc  $14,613  

 Otitis Media Group Inc.  $29,724  

 Our Community Garden Incorporated  $31,328  

 Outcare (Incorporated)  $149,322  

 Outcare (Incorporated)  $50,000  

 Paraburdoo Toy Library Association  $15,000  

 Parkerville Children and Youth Care Incorporated  $19,918  

 Pat Thomas House Inc  $30,000  

 Pathways South West Inc  $70,887  

 Patricia Giles Centre Inc  $10,000  

 Paupiyala Tjarutja Aboriginal Corporation  $655,025  

 Peaceful Bay Sea Rescue Group (Inc.) WA  $15,619  

 Peel Community Kitchen Incorporated  $20,992  

 Peel Volunteer Resource Centre Inc  $25,000  

 Pemberton Visitor Centre Inc  $63,228  

 People With Disabilities (WA)  $66,500  

 Permaculture Association of WA  $15,000  

 Perth Asian Community Centre  $1,200  

 Perth Blues Club (WA) Incorporated  $4,800  

 Perth Diocesan Trustees - Anglican Parish of Gosnells Welfare & Community Services  $15,000  

 Perth Diocesan Trustees - Anglican Parish of Wongan Hills - Dalwallinu  $8,780  

 Perth Diocesan Trustees - Guildford Community Carols by Candlelight  $5,115  

 Perth Indonesian Community Incorporated  $4,790  

 Perth Inner City Youth Service Inc  $15,500  

 Perth International Jazz Festival Inc.  $85,000  

 Grant Customer  Amount Granted 

 Perth Observatory Volunteer Group Incorporated  $17,260  

 Perth Zoo Docent Association Incorporated  $340,000  

 Pickering Brook Sports Club  $20,000  

 Pilbara Community Legal Service Incorporated  $50,000  

 Plantagenet Sporting Club Incorporated  $5,175  

 Polish Ethnic School Inc  $13,636  

 PortCare Incorporated  $14,500  

 Pregnancy Assistance (Incorporated)  $23,100  

 Pride Western Australia Incorporated  $150,000  

 Pride Western Australia Incorporated  $375,000  

 Princess Royal Sailing Club  $48,000  

 Prison Fellowship Australia  $75,000  

 Probus Club of Karrinyup and North Beach Western Australia(Inc)  $2,480  

 Probus Club of Mandurah Peel Inc  $1,380  

 Probus Club of Vasse Incorporated  $1,000  

 Propel Youth Arts WA Incorporated  $35,000  

 Quairading Community Resource Centre (Inc.)  $14,060  

 Quairading Tourist and Tidy Town Committee  $4,350  

 Quairading Vintage Club (Inc)  $4,427  

 Quambie Park Waroona (Inc)  $69,733  

 Quinninup Community Association Incorporated  $7,837  

 Rainbow Child Care Centre Inc.  $15,357  

 Rainbow Playgroup Centre Inc  $9,015  

 Ravensthorpe Community Resource Centre Inc  $35,191  

 Ravensthorpe Regional Arts Council  $11,420  

 Ravensthorpe Regional Arts Council  $8,205  

 Ravensthorpe Wildflower Show Inc  $15,000  

 Reconciliation Western Australia Inc  $112,510  

 Reconciliation Western Australia Inc  $133,906  

 Regional Counselling and Mentoring Services (Incorporated)  $8,400  

 Regional Counselling and Mentoring Services (Incorporated)  $3,000  

 Regional Development Australia - Pilbara Inc  $60,000  

 Regional Development Australia Wheatbelt Inc.  $86,804  

 Residents Committee of Willow Creek Mews Retirement Village  $7,000  

 Returned and Services League of Australia WA Branch Incorporated  $1,034,547  

 Returned and Services League of Australia WA Branch Incorporated - Applecross Sub Branch  $4,939  

 Revellers Australia Ltd  $15,000  

 Riding for the Disabled Association of Western Australia  $32,891  

 Rise Network Inc  $28,474  

 Rockingham District Gem and Rockhunting Club  $7,650  

 Rockingham Volunteer Sea Rescue Group (Inc)  $30,000  
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 Roleystone Community College Bush Rangers Cadets  $11,619  

 Roman Catholic Archbishop of Perth - St Joseph Parish Northam  $10,000  

 Roman Catholic Archbishop of Perth - The Shopfront  $15,000  

 Roman Catholic Bishop of Broome-Sacred Heart Church BeagleBay  $40,240  

 Roman Catholic Bishop of Geraldton - Centacare Family Services  $10,233  

 Roman Catholic Bishop of Geraldton - Centacare Family Services  $55,000  

 Rossmoyne Kindergarten Inc  $66,356  

 Rossmoyne Kindergarten Inc  $6,828  

 Rotary Club of Mandurah Districts Western Australia Incorporated  $5,000  

 Rotary Club of North Perth (Inc)  $20,000  

 Rotary Club of Swan Valley (Inc)  $2,100  

 Rotary Club of Willetton (Inc)  $8,040  

 Rotary Club of Wongan Hills Incorporated  $3,000  

 Rottnest Voluntary Guides Association Incorporated  $18,946  

 Roy’s Retreat Inc.  $22,273  

 Royal Western Australian Historical Society Incorporated  $6,966  

 Ruah Community Services  $60,000  

 Sambanistas Inc.  $3,188  

 Saraswati Mahavidyalaya Institute Incorporated  $20,000  

 Save the Children Australia As Trustee for Save the Children Australia Trust  $34,636  

 Saving Animals From Euthanasia Inc.  $15,910  

 Scitech Discovery Centre  $250,000  

 Scout Association of Australia, Western Australian Branch  $144,918  

 Screenwest Inc  $7,793,000  

 Sculpture By The Sea Incorporated  $45,000  

 Seacrest Village Social Club  $1,025  

 Second Harvest Australia Inc  $100,000  

 Seniors’ Recreation Council of WA (Inc)  $30,000  

 Seniors’ Recreation Council of WA (Inc)  $7,980  

 Sensorium Theatre Incorporated  $104,800  

 Serpentine Jarrahdale Men’s Shed Incorporated  $10,140  

 SES Volunteer’s Association of Western Australia (Incorporated)  $179,619  

 Settlers Lakeside Village Ravenswood Residents’ Association Incorporated  $8,850  

 Seventh-Day Adventist Care (WA) Ltd - Aged Care - Rossmoyne  $29,700  

 Grant Customer  Amount Granted 

 Share & Care Community Services Group Incorporated  $124,000  

 Shelter WA Inc  $40,000  

 Shinju Matsuri Inc.  $30,000  

 Shire of Augusta-Margaret River  $1,400,000  

 Shire of Beverley  $13,000  

 Shire of Bridgetown-Greenbushes  $96,987  

 Shire of Bridgetown-Greenbushes  $14,550  

 Shire of Bridgetown-Greenbushes  $42,187  

 Shire of Broome  $46,396  

 Shire of Broome  $2,808,704  

 Shire of Broomehill-Tambellup  $74,123  

 Shire of Broomehill-Tambellup  $10,600  

 Shire of Broomehill-Tambellup  $37,850  

 Shire of Capel  $23,000  

 Shire of Carnarvon - Carnarvon Civic Centre  $29,000  

 Shire of Chapman Valley  $100,000  

 Shire of Chittering  $16,500  

 Shire of Collie  $83,650  

 Shire of Coorow  $100,000  

 Shire of Corrigin  $17,262  

 Shire of Cranbrook  $10,000  

 Shire of Cranbrook  $453,309  

 Shire of Cuballing  $10,000  

 Shire of Dalwallinu  $1,300,000  

 Shire of Dandaragan  $10,000  

 Shire of Dardanup  $240,000  

 Shire of Denmark  $47,887  

 Shire of Derby-West Kimberley  $200,000  

 Shire of Donnybrook-Balingup  $8,000  

 Shire of Dundas  $20,000  

 Shire of Dundas  $771,550  

 Shire of East Pilbara  $1,500,000  

 Shire of Esperance  $60,000  

 Shire of Esperance  $156,000  

 Grant Customer  Amount Granted 

 Shire of Gingin  $50,000  

 Shire of Gnowangerup  $16,045  

 Shire of Harvey  $72,000  

 Shire of Irwin  $20,000  

 Shire of Irwin  $10,000  

 Shire of Jerramungup  $719,000  

 Shire of Jerramungup  $84,000  

 Shire of Katanning  $20,000  

 Shire of Kojonup  $36,705  

 Shire of Kondinin  $7,200  

 Shire of Kondinin  $49,031  

 Shire of Lake Grace  $100,000  

 Shire of Leonora  $28,000  

 Shire of Leonora  $36,000  

 Shire of Manjimup  $7,700  

 Shire of Manjimup  $1,168,869  

 Shire of Manjimup - Home and Community Care  $3,800  

 Shire of Meekatharra  $20,000  

 Shire of Merredin  $163,637  

 Shire of Merredin  $14,850  

 Shire of Merredin  $10,000  

 Shire of Merredin - Cummins Theatre  $85,978  

 Shire of Mingenew  $13,580  

 Shire of Mount Magnet  $20,000  

 Shire of Mukinbudin  $14,905  

 Shire of Mundaring  $15,000  

 Shire of Mundaring  $5,000  

 Shire of Murray  $79,973  

 Shire of Murray  $20,000  

 Shire of Nannup  $134,748  

 Shire of Narrogin  $12,130  

 Shire of Northam  $2,000,000  

 Shire of Northam  $30,470  

 Shire of Northampton  $7,820  

 Shire of Northampton  $96,205  

 Shire of Peppermint Grove  $8,751  

 Shire of Perenjori  $15,530  

 Shire of Pingelly  $50,000  

 Shire of Ravensthorpe  $167,926  

 Shire of Serpentine-Jarrahdale  $8,202  

 Shire of Shark Bay  $89,310  

 Shire of Tammin  $28,500  

 Grant Customer  Amount Granted 

 Shire of Three Springs  $250,000  

 Shire of Trayning  $96,000  

 Shire of Upper Gascoyne  $7,045  

 Shire of Wagin  $25,000  

 Shire of Williams  $200,000  

 Shire of Yalgoo  $35,308  

 Shire of Yalgoo  $18,250  

 Silver Threads Band  $3,886  

 So Change Inc.  $20,000  

 South Coast Natural Resource Management Inc  $30,000  

 South Lake Ottey Family & Neighbourhood Centre Incorporated  $54,500  

 South West Community Legal Centre Inc  $49,039  

 South West Counselling Inc  $5,750  

 South West Foodbowl Association Inc  $18,182  

 South West Refuge Inc  $29,500  

 Southcare (Incorporated)  $80,000  

 Southern Agcare Inc  $25,000  

 Speak Easy Association of Western Australia (Incorporated)  $10,973  

 Spiers Centre Inc  $202,798  

 Spirit of the Streets Choir (Inc)  $19,000  

 St Barbara’s Festival Incorporated  $20,000  

 St John Ambulance Western Australia Ltd  $14,779  

 St John Ambulance Western Australia Ltd  $263,721  

 St John of God Outreach Services - Horizon House Wanneroo  $24,000  

 St John of God Outreach Services - Horizon House Wilson  $24,000  

 St Patrick’s Community Support Centre Limited  $350,000  

 St Patrick’s Day WA Inc  $15,000  

 St Vincent De Paul Society (WA) Incorporated  $1,250,000  

 Starick Services Inc  $5,150  

 Starting Over Support Association Incorporated  $62,578  

 Stirling Carols by Candlelight Inc.  $10,000  

 Stirling Ethnic Aged Homes Association Incorporated  $29,217  

 Stock Road Senior Citizens Club (Inc.)  $3,648  

 Stratton Out of School Care Service Incorporated  $3,495  

 Subiaco Community Men’s Shed (Inc)  $13,897  

 Sun City Care Incorporated  $15,000  

 Sun City Christian Centre Incorporated  $169,000  

 Superfins WA Incorporated  $15,000  

 Surf Life Saving Western Australia Incorporated  $899,482  

 Swan Canoe Club Inc  $53,464  

 Swan Districts Bridge Club Inc  $2,445  

 Swan Guildford Historical Society  $4,069  
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 Swan Valley Community Centre Inc  $2,300  

 Swan Valley Community Centre Inc  $2,900  

 Swan View and Districts Agricultural and Art Society  $1,702  

 T.L.C. Emergency Welfare Foundation of Western Australia (Inc.)  $6,940  

 T.S Vindicatrix Association of Western Australia Incorporated  $9,665  

 Tambellup Agricultural Society  $2,800  

 Tammin Economy Shop Cooinda Association T.E.S.C.A. (Inc)  $5,700  

 TAPSS Community Care (Inc )  $25,004  

 Te Haupai Maori and Pacific Island Trust Association Inc.  $10,000  

 Telethon Kids Institute  $1,500,000  

 Tenancy WA Incorporated  $140,000  

 Tenth Light Horse Bunbury Troop  $20,000  

 Tesla Forum of WA Inc  $15,900  

 The Western Australian Opera Company Incorporated  $275,000  

 Therapy Focus Ltd.  $10,000  

 Tom Price Nameless Festival (Incorporated)  $22,000  

 Toodyay Festivals Inc  $15,000  

 Town of Bassendean  $20,000  

 Town of Bassendean  $375,000  

 Town of Cambridge  $21,164  

 Town of Claremont  $760,000  

 Town of Cottesloe  $14,185  

 Town of East Fremantle  $18,277  

 Town of Mosman Park  $24,980  

 Town of Mosman Park  $14,728  

 Town of Port Hedland  $195,000  

 Town of Port Hedland  $28,495  

 Town of Victoria Park  $35,000  

 Town of Victoria Park  $1,931,183  

 Transplant Australia Limited - WA Branch  $38,250  

 Two Rocks Volunteer Marine Rescue Group (Inc)  $50,062  

 U3A Network WA Incorporated  $7,314  

 Undalup Association Inc.  $10,296  

 Undercroft Bridge Club  $15,000  

 Grant Customer  Amount Granted 

 Underwater Explorers Club of Western Australia  $6,182  

 Uni Camp For Kids Incorporated  $96,264  

 Unit Committee T.S. Pilbara Incorporated  $5,152  

 United Nations Association of Australia (WA Division) Inc  $11,132  

 Uniting Church in Australia Property Trust (WA) - Finucare  $68,000  

 Uniting Church in Australia Property Trust (WA) - Uniting Aid  $115,000  

 Uniting Church in Australia Property Trust (WA) - Uniting Outreach Mandurah  $18,500  

 UnitingCare West  $640,000  

 University of the Third Age, The UWA Inc - Wanneroo  $2,940  

 University of Western Australia  $20,000  

 University of Western Australia - Centre for Social Impact  $74,348  

 Urban Bushland Council WA Inc  $21,109  

 UWA - Perth International Arts Festival  $7,793,000  

 Valley View Events (Inc)  $15,000  

 Variety WA Incorporated  $20,000  

 Variety WA Incorporated  $20,000  

 Variety WA Incorporated  $40,000  

 Veritas Family Ltd  $5,000  

 Veteran Car Club of WA  $190,000  

 Victoria Park Youth Accomodation (Inc).  $9,000  

 Vietnam Veterans Association of Australia WA Branch Incorporated  $2,950  

 Vietnam Veterans Association of Australia WA Branch Incorporated  $3,070  

 Vietnamese Community in Australia / Western Australia Chapter Incorporated  $20,000  

 Vincent Men’s Shed Inc  $13,500  

 Vocal Ensemble Voiceworks Inc  $5,400  

 Voluntary Gallery Guides of The Art Gallery of Western Australia  $10,200  

 Volunteer Centre of  Western Australia (Inc.)  $316,000  

 Volunteer Marine Rescue Shark Bay Inc  $93,054  

 WA Croatian Community Centre Inc  $19,690  

 WA Disabled Sports Association  $12,993  

 WA Disabled Sports Association  $8,950  

 WA Youth Jazz Orchestra Association (Inc.)  $11,770  

 WA Youth Jazz Orchestra Association (Inc.)  $3,520  

 WA Circus School Incorporated  $23,722  

 Grant Customer  Amount Granted 

 WA French Festival Inc  $15,000  

 WA Mums Cottage Inc  $1,750  

 Walpole Community Resource Centre (Inc)  $124,324  

 Wanslea Family Services Incorporated  $896,087  

 Waratah Christian Community Inc  $7,500  

 Waringarri Media Aboriginal Corporation  $188,919  

 Waringarri Media Aboriginal Corporation  $18,353  

 Warren Arts Council Incorporated  $15,000  

 Wasamba Incorporated  $15,000  

 Weld Square Primary School River Rangers  $10,446  

 West Arthur Community Resource Centre Incorporated  $1,818  

 West Australian Ballet Company  $186,110  

 West Australian Foundation for Deaf Children (Inc.)  $29,740  

 West Australian Men’s Gathering Inc  $10,720  

 West Australian Music Industry Association Incorporated  $15,000  

 West Australian Music Industry Association Incorporated  $85,560  

 West Australian Quilters Association  $1,854  

 West Australian Symphony Orchestra Pty Ltd  $274,940  

 West Australian Symphony Orchestra Pty Ltd  $300,000  

 West Swan Volunteer Bush Fire Brigade  $15,000  

 WestAus Crisis and Welfare Services Inc  $50,000  

 Western Australia Kannada Sangha Inc  $6,120  

 Western Australia Samoa Association Inc  $11,500  

 Western Australian Adult Literacy Council Incorporated  $11,100  

 Western Australian AIDS Council (Inc.)  $7,280  

 Western Australian Association for Mental Health (Inc)  $51,000  

 Western Australian Association for Mental Health (Inc)  $65,000  

 Western Australian Association of the Deaf Incorporated  $15,000  

 Western Australian Camera Club (Incorporated)  $15,000  

 Western Australian Council of Social Service Incorporated  $53,971  

 Western Australian Council of Social Service Incorporated  $228,060  

 Western Australian Council of Social Service Incorporated  $162,167  

 Western Australian Council of Social Service Incorporated  $655,000  

 Western Australian Council of State School Organisations  $34,461  

 Western Australian Council of State School Organisations  $30,000  

 Western Australian Cricket Association  $9,000  

 Western Australian Deaf Society (Inc)  $35,000  

 Western Australian Genealogical Society  $3,040  

 Western Australian Regional Orchid Organisation Incorporated  $18,700  

 Western Australian Science Fiction Foundation Incorporated  $5,050  

 Western Australian Substance Users’ Association Incorporated  $81,378  

 Westonia Community Resource Centre Inc  $30,045  

 Grant Customer  Amount Granted 

 Wheatbelt Natural Resource Management Incorporated  $150,275  

 Wheelchairs For Kids Inc  $8,542  

 Whitford Church of Christ (Inc)  $30,000  

 Whitford Church of Christ (Inc)  $20,000  

 Whitford Family Centre Inc.  $16,879  

 Whitford Senior Citizens Club (Inc)  $9,401  

 Wilderness Society WA Inc  $20,000  

 William Langford Community House Incorporated  $3,790  

 William Langford Community House Incorporated  $63,250  

 William Langford Community House Incorporated  $2,750  

 Williams Community Resource Centre Inc  $9,000  

 Williams Gateway Expo (Inc)  $15,000  

 Wirrpanda Foundation Limited  $2,000,000  

 Women’s Council for Domestic and Family Violence Services (WA) Inc.  $71,694  

 Women’s Health Care Association  $40,000  

 Woodlupine Family Centre Inc.  $6,147  

 Workshop Camera Club (Inc)  $10,000  

 Wunan Foundation Inc.  $170,000  

 Wunan Foundation Inc.  $25,000  

 Wyndham Early Learning Activity Centre (WELA) Incorporated  $10,160  

 Wyndham Historical Society (Incorporated)  $18,000  

 Yaandina Family Centre Limited  $1,100,000  

 Yaandina Family Centre Limited  $14,160  

 Yaburara and Coastal Mardudhunera Aboriginal Corporation  $71,316  

 Yakanarra Aboriginal Corporation  $20,347  

 Yamatji Marlpa Aboriginal Corporation  $18,450  

 Yindjibarndi Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC  $102,751  

 Yongergnow Incorporated  $4,694  

 Young Boxing Woman Inc  $5,100  

 Youth Affairs Council of Western Australia  $13,992  

 Youth Affairs Council of Western Australia  $94,300  

 Youth Affairs Council of Western Australia  $16,700  

 Youth Affairs Council of Western Australia  $163,800  

 Youth Futures WA Inc  $23,597  

 Youth Involvement Council Incorporated  $75,462  

 Zig Zag Community Arts Inc  $19,995  

 Zonta House Women’s Refuge Inc.  $34,500  

 Zonta House Women’s Refuge Inc.  $40,250  

 Zonta House Women’s Refuge Inc.  $385,952  

 $114,239,529  
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